
Asteron Life Limited 

Financial report 
for the financial year ended 30 June 2017 

Asteron 
Life 



Aste Life Limited 

Financial report 
for the financial year ended 30 June 2017 

Contents Page 

Directors' report ............................................................................................................................................ 3 

Corporate governance statement ................................................................................................................. 5 

Independent Auditor's report ........................................................................................................................ 8 

Statement of comprehensive income ......................................................................................................... 10 

Statement of financial position ................................................................................................................... 11 

Statement of changes in equity .................................................................................................................. 12 

Statement of cash flows ............................................................................................................................. 13 

Notes to the financial statements ............................................................................................................... 14 

1. Reporting entity ................................................................................................................................ 14 
2. Basis of preparation ......................................................................................................................... 14 
3. Dividends .......................................................................................................................................... 16 
4. Sources of operating profit ............................................................................................................... 16 
5. Revenue ........................................................................................................................................... 16 
6. Net claims and expenses ................................................................................................................. 17 
7. Income tax ........................................................................................................................................ 18 
8. Receivables ...................................................................................................................................... 20 
9. Investment securities ........................................................................................................................ 21 
10. Derivative financial instruments ....................................................................................................... 21 
11. Reinsurance recoveries receivable .................................................................................................. 21 
12. Payables and other liabilities ............................................................................................................ 21 
13. Employee benefit obligations ........................................................................................................... 22 
14. Outstanding claims liabilities ............................................................................................................ 26 
15. Life policy liabilities ........................................................................................................................... 27 
16. Share capital .................................................................................................................................... 32 
17. Capital management ........................................................................................................................ 33 
18. Credit rating ................................................................................................................ : ..................... 34 
19. Notes to the statement of cash flows ............................................................................................... 34 
20. Financial instruments ....................................................................................................................... 34 
21. Risk management ............................................................................................................................ 37 
22. Commitments of expenditure ........................................................................................................... 47 
23. Related parties ................................................................................................................................. 4 7 
24. Auditor's remuneration ..................................................................................................................... 50 
25. Contingent liabilities ......................................................................................................................... 50 
26. Statutory funds ................................................................................................................................. 51 
27. Disaggregated information ............................................................................................................. 52 
28. Significant accounting policies ......................................................................................................... 52 
29. Subsequent events ........................................................................................................................... 61 

ASTERON LIFE LIMITED I FINANCIAL REPORT 2016/17 2 



Directors' report 

The Board of Directors presents the Directors' report together with the financial report of Asteron Life 
Limited (the Company) for the financial year ended 30 June 2017. 

With the agreement of the shareholder, the Company has taken advantage of reporting concessions 
available to it under Section 211 (3) of the Companies Act 1993. 

Directors 

The Directors of the Company at any time during or since the end of the financial year are: 

Non-executive 
D M Flacks 
AR Gerry 
GT Ricketts (Chairman) 
M A Cameron (Appointed 1 September 2016) 
Executive 
PW Smeaton 
NA Tereora (Resigned 15 July 2016) 

Registered office 
Level 13, Asteron Centre 
55 Featherston Street 
Wellington 6011 
New Zealand 

Auditor 
KPMG 
18 Viaduct Harbour Avenue 
Auckland 1010 
New Zealand 

Dividends 

During the financial year, the Company paid dividends totalling $21,000,000 (2016: $14,750,000). Further 
details of dividends paid are set out in Note 3 to the financial statements. 

Principal activities 

The principal activities of the Company during the course of the financial year were the underwriting of life 
insurance and the administration of long term savings products. There has been no significant change in 
the nature of these activities during the year. 

Review of operations 

The Company recorded a net profit after tax for the year ended 30 June 2017 of $38,108,000 compared 
with a net profit after tax of $50,472,000 for the year ended 30 June 2016. 

Events subsequent to reporting date 

There is, at the date of this Report, no matter or circumstance that has arisen since 30 June 2017 that 
has significantly affected, or may significantly affect: 
(a) the Company's operations in future financial periods; 
(b) the results of those operations in future financial periods; or 
(c) the Company's state of affairs in future financial periods. 
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Directors' report (continued) · 

Information on directors in office at the date of this report 

Michael A Cameron 

FCPA, FCA, FA/CD, BBus (Accounting) 
Director and the Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director of Suncorp Group since October 2015. 
Prior to this he was a non-executive Director of Suncorp Group Limited for three years. Mr Cameron has 
extensive domestic and international experience in business, including as a senior executive across 
financial services and property industries. Mr Cameron is an experienced Director having served on a 
number of ASX and not-for-profit boards. 

David M Flacks 

BA, MA, St John's College, University of Cambridge 
Director since September 2015. Mr Flacks is an experienced governance and regulatory professional 
having been a senior corporate lawyer for many years. He is chair of a number of company boards as 
well as the Markets Disciplinary Tribunal of the NZX. 

He is also a director of Vero Insurance New Zealand Limited and its subsidiary Vero Liability Insurance 
Limited (related companies of Asteron Life Limited). 

Alison R Gerry 
MAPPF/n, BMS(Hons), CFTP 
Director since July 2015. Ms Gerry is an experienced professional director who has significant financial, 
commercial, governance and strategic experience in the financial services sector in New Zealand, 
Australia, London and Hong Kong. Ms Gerry is also a director of Vero Insurance New Zealand Limited 
and Vero Liability Insurance Limited and chairs the Board Audit & Risk Committees of those companies. 

Geoffrey T Ricketts CNZM 
LLB (Hons), LLD (honoris causa), F/nstD 
Director since 1992. Mr Ricketts is a commercial lawyer, having been a partner of a major New Zealand 
law firm for over 25 years. He has extensive experience in New Zealand and Australia. 

He is a director of a number of other companies. He is also the Chairman of Vero Insurance New Zealand 
Limited and Vero Liability Insurance Limited. 

Paul W Smeaton 
BBM, MA/CD 
Director since May 2016 and Chief Executive Officer since March 2016. Mr Smeaton has been with 
Suncorp since 1997 and has over 30 years' financial services experience, having worked in banking, 
insurance, funds management and stock broking. Mr Smeaton is Chief Executive Officer of Suncorp New 
Zealand and is also a director of Vero Insurance New Zealand Limited, and its subsidiaries, Vero Liability 
Insurance Limited and AA Insurance Limited. 

Mr Smeaton is also on the board of the Insurance Council of New Zealand. 

The financial report of the Company was approved for issue by the Board on 31 July 2017. 

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors. 

~ 
Director Director 
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Corporate governance statement 

Introduction 
Asteron Life Limited (Company) is a New Zealand incorporated licensed life insurer which is wholly­
owned by Suncorp Group New Zealand Limited. The ultimate parent of the Company is Suncorp Group 
Limited, an Australian public company which is listed on the Australian Securities Exchange. 

This corporate governance statement contains an outline of the principal corporate governance practices, 
policies and processes that have been established by the Company. 

Board of Directors 
At the date of this statement, the Board comprised three independent non-executive Directors (Geoffrey 
Ricketts, Alison Gerry and David Flacks), one non-executive Director who is not independent (Michael 
Cameron) and one executive Director (Paul Smeaton, who is also the Chief Executive Officer of Suncorp 
New Zealand which includes the Company). Geoffrey Ricketts is the Chairman of the Board. Brief details 
of the Directors' qualifications and experience are set out in the Directors' Report. 

The Board has adopted a Board Renewal Policy. Under this Policy, the Board is required to take into 
account a wide range of factors when considering an appointment to or the composition of, the Board. 
These factors include size, composition and diversity of the Board, mix of competencies, qualities and 
skills held by existing Directors and how the skills of a new Director may be utilised for the effective and 
prudent management of the Company and how the candidate's attributes will balance and complement 
the future requirements of the Board. Other key considerations include culture fit and an understanding of 
the business of the Company and the environment in which it operates. The Board considers it important 
to maintain an appropriate mix of long-serving Directors with established knowledge of the Company's 
business and corporate history, and new Directors who bring fresh perspectives to the Board. There is a 
Board-approved process for nominating and appointing Directors. 

A Board skills matrix has been adopted in order to assist the Board to ensure that the composition of the 
Board remains appropriate. This is also used as part of the annual Board performance evaluation 
process. 

The Board of the Company has approved criteria for assessing the independence of its non-executive 
Directors. These criteria are used in conjunction with the Governance Guidelines issued by the Reserve 
Bank of New Zealand. 

New Directors undergo an induction process and all Directors are expected to keep up to date with 
matters affecting the business of the Company, the Suncorp Group, the life insurance industry and their 
duties as Directors. 

Each Director has met the requirements and criteria set out in the Board-approved Fit and Proper Policy 
and must complete an annual fit and proper declaration which is approved by the Board. 

Duties and Responsibilities of the Board 
The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the performance of the Company. Suncorp New 
Zealand's Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the day-to-day operation and management of the 
business of the Company. 

Under the Company's constitution, each Director is required to act in the best interests of the Company. 
Other matters covered by the constitution include the appointment and removal of Directors, the minimum 
number of Directors, the quorum for Board meetings, meeting procedures, Directors' interests, and 
Directors' remuneration and other benefits. 

The Company is required to give priority to the interests of policyholders of life policies over the interests 
of the shareholder. 

The Board has adopted a charter which contains the principles for the operation of the Board, a 
description of the functions and responsibilities of the Board and those functions that are delegated to 
management. Matters covered by this charter include Board composition, responsibilities of the 
Chairperson and individual Directors, conflicts of interest, Board meeting procedures and Board 
petiormance reviews. Provision is also made for the Board to delegate certain matters to committees. 
The Board is required to regularly review its charter and its continued adequacy. 
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Corporate governance statement (continued) 

Duties and Responsibilities of the Board {continued) 

Scheduled Board meetings are held on a quarterly basis. Otheiwise, Board meetings are held as often as 
are deemed necessary by Directors to fulfil their duties and responsibilities. The Board approves an 
annual programme of work and this is used as a guide to the preparation of each scheduled Board 
meeting's agenda. 

The Board approves the strategic direction of the Company and monitors executive management 
performance in the implementation and achievement of strategic and business objectives through the 
receipt of regular reports from management. Other matters that are approved or endorsed (as 
appropriate) by the Board include the Suncorp New Zealand Risk Appetite Statement and Internal Capital 
Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP), dividend payments, financial statements and solvency returns, 
and major operating and capital expenditure which exceeds management's limits. 

Governance 
As the Company is part of the Suncorp Group, it complies with Suncorp Group's policies and 
requirements, except where these are inconsistent with New Zealand legal or regulatory requirements. 
The Board of the Company has formally adopted a number of Suncorp Group's policies (amended to 
reflect New Zealand requirements where appropriate). These include Conflicts of Interest, Business 
Continuity Management, Whistleblower, Product and Platform Management, Securities Trading, Equal 
Employment Opportunity and Diversity, and Safety and Wellbeing. Directors are also required to abide by 
Suncorp Group's Code of Conduct. 

The Company has also adopted Suncorp New Zealand-specific policies where appropriate. These include 
Delegations of Authority. · 

Board Audit and Risk Committee 
In order to enable the Board to focus on strategy, planning and performance enhancement, the Board has 
delegated certain duties to its Board Audit and Risk Committee (BARC). The role of the BARC is to assist 
the Board in fulfilling its statutory and fiduciary responsibilities with respect to the oversight of the 
effectiveness of risk management strategies and internal controls across the Company. The terms of 
reference of the BARC are contained in a Board-approved BARG charter. All of the non-executive 
Directors of the Board are members of the BARC and the majority of members are independent. Alison 
Gerry, an independent non-executive Director of the Company, has a finance background and chairs the 
BARC. 

The BARG is required to meet not less than four times a year. The BARC approves an annual 
programme of work and this is used as a guide to the preparation of each BARC meeting agenda. The 
BARC receives regular reports from senior executives including the Chief Risk Officer and the Chief 
Financial Officer of Suncorp New Zealand. Regular reports are also received from Suncorp Internal Audit 
(which provides objective internal audit services to the Suncorp Group), and the Company's external 
auditor. Other attendees of BARC meetings include Suncorp New Zealand 's executive Directors (this 
includes the Chief Executive Officer) and representatives from the Company's Risk and Finance 
functions, Suncorp Internal Audit, the Suncorp Group Chief Legal Officer, and the external auditor. The 
BARC reviews and makes recommendations to the Board on matters such as the Company's Risk 
Appetite Statement and ICAAP, investment strategy and mandate reviews, financial statements and 
solvency returns. The BARC regularly updates the Board on its activities and provides its minutes to the 
Board. 

Under the terms of its charter, the BARC is required to undertake an annual assessment of its 
effectiveness in meeting the requirements of its charter. The results are reported to the Board. The BARC 
is also required to regularly review its charter. 

Information on the Company's approach to Risk Management is contained in Note 21. 
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Corporate governance statement (continued) 

Corporate Social Responsibility 

Community investment 
The Suncorp Group Brighter Futures Community Giving Program unites, engages and empowers 
individuals to make a difference to causes they are passionate about. This program provides Suncorp 
New Zealand employees with opportunities to get involved, give and share by volunteering, fundraising, 
and donating. Employees may take one day of paid volunteer leave each year to support local 
community projects. Over the last year, employees have volunteered for charities such as Sailability, 
Ronald McDonald House, Auckland City Mission and Ambury Park Riding for the Disabled. 

Grants are awarded to those applications that demonstrate the greatest impact for communities and 
individuals in New Zealand and Australia, as determined by the Suncorp Brighter Futures Internal 
Advisory Panel. Community grants of between $1,000 and $10,000 are available for charities, individuals, 
community groups, schools or sports clubs and local grants of up to $1,000 are available for sports 
groups, community clubs, schools and playgroups. 

Brighter Futures community and local grants of $23,372 have been awarded to New Zealand charities, 
individuals and community groups in the last 12 months. 

The Suncorp Group Brighter Futures Dollar Matching programme will match the fundraising amounts of 
employees, up to $500, to a registered charity in New Zealand or Australia. During the 2017 financial 
year, 11 applications for dollar matching were made in New Zealand totalling $7,201. 

* All amounts noted in this section are denominated in Australian dollars. 

Disaster Response 
During the 2017 financial year, Vero Insurance New Zealand Limited (Vero Insurance) dealt with several 
major events, including the Kaikoura earthquake and Cyclone Debbie. Vero Insurance was the first 
insurance company on the ground in Kaikoura, opening an office to support customers affected by the 
quake. 

Following the Kaikoura earthquake, Vero Insurance worked alongside various organisations and charities 
to get food boxes delivered to people in need and emergency service workers in Kaikoura and 
surrounding rural areas. 

Following the Kaikoura earthquake, Asteron Life Limited offered a financial relief package for customers. 
Asteron Life Limited provided premium relief for up to three months to affected residents who were 
experiencing genuine financial hardship as a result of the earthquake. 

Diversity & Inclusion 
Suncorp New Zealand's goal is to attract diverse talent, to build leadership capability to enable 
employees to realise their full potential. 

The Suncorp Diversity Council is focussed on delivering these objectives by: 
Creating and overseeing a diversity strategy 
Recommending initiatives to support greater gender diversity 
Tracking progress including creating targets and regular scorecards 
Promoting and championing diversity 

Suncorp New Zealand's Diversity Council is chaired by the Suncorp New Zealand CEO. 
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ndeoendent Auditor's Reoort 
To the shareholder of Asteron Life Limited 

Report on the financial statements 

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditi ng (New Zealand) (" ISAs (NZ)"). We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a bas is for our opinion. 

We are independent of the company in accordance w ith Professional and Ethical Standard 1 (Revised) Code of 
Ethics for Assurance Practitioners issued by the New Zealand Aud iti ng and Assurance Standards Board and the 
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), 
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance w ith these requirements and the I ESBA Code. 

Our responsib ilities under ISAs (NZ) are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
financia l statements section of our report . 

Our firm has also provided other services to the company in relation to other audit and assurance services. Subject 
to certain restrictions, partners and employees of our fi rm may also deal with the company on normal terms within 
the ordinary course of trading activities of the business of the company. These matters have not impaired our 
independence as auditor of the company. The firm has no other relationship with, or interest in, the company. 

·--t Other Information 

The Directors, on beha lf of the company, are responsib le for the other information included in the entity's Annual 
Report. Other information includes the directors' report and corporate governance statement. Our opin ion on the 
financial statements does not cover any other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion 
thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements our responsibility is to read the other information and, in 
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears materia lly misstated. If, based on the work we have 
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report 
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

© 2017 KPMG, a New Zealand partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent 
member firms affiliated with KPMG lnternat1ona! Cooperative ("KPMG International"), a Swiss entity. 
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$ fi1. Use of this Independent Auditor's Report 

This report is made sole ly to the shareholder as a body. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state 
to the shareholder those matters we are requ ired to state to them in the Independent Auditor's Report and for no 
other purpose. To the fu llest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other 
than the shareholder as a body for our audit work, th is report, or any of the opinions we have formed. 

A Responsibilities of the Directors for the financial statements 

The Directors, on behalf of the company, are responsible for: 

- the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting practice in New Zealand (be ing New Zealand Equivalents to International Financial Reporting 
Standards) and International Financial Reporting Standards; 

- implementing necessary internal control to enable the preparation of a set of f inancial statements that is fa irly 
presented and free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; and 

- assessing the abi lity to continue as a going concern. This includes disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate or to cease 
operations, or have no real istic alternative but to do so. 

x,R._,.. Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements 

Our objective is: 

- to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from materia l 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; and 

- to issue an Independent Auditor's Report that includes our op inion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with ISAs NZ w ill always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 

M isstatements can arise from fraud or error. They are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they 
cou ld reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the bas is of these financial 
statements. 

A further description of our respons ibilities for the audit of these financial statements is located at the External 
Reporting Board (XRB) website at 

https://www.xrb.govt.nz/Site/Audit ing_Assurance_Standards/Current_Standards/Page6.aspx. 

This description forms part of our Independent Auditor's Report. 

For and on behalf of 

KPMG 
Auckland 

31 July 2017 
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Statement of comprehensive income 
for the financial year ended 30 June 2017 

$'000 $'000 

Premium revenue 5 225,607 213,929 

Outwards reinsurance eremium exeense {34,407} {31,856} 

Net premium revenue 191,20Q 182,073 

Investment revenue 5 28,029 49,993 

Net revenue 219,229 232,066 

Claims expense 6 (104,439) (134,275) 

Reinsurance recoveries revenue 5 21;903 37,667 

Net claims exeense 6 {82,536) (96,608) 

Policy acquisition expenses 6 (52,852) (57,069) 

Policy maintenance expenses 6 (36,835) (34,149) 

Investment management expenses 6 {1,336) (1,155) 

Change in insurance contract liabilities 6, 15.1 27,279 31,979 

Change in policy liabilities ceded under reinsurance 6, 15.1 (1,639) 4,412 

Change in investment contract liabilities 6, 15.1 (13,289) (9,013) 

Change in unvested eolic}'.holder liabilities 6, 15.1 {2,018} 765 

Total management expenses and eolic}l liabili~ movements {80,690} (64,230) 

Net claims and exeenses 6 i163,226} (160,838} 

Profit before tax 56,Q03 71,228 

Income tax exeense 7.1 {17,895} {20,756l 

Profit for the financial year attributable to owners of the 
Company 4, 26 38,1()8 50,472 

Other comprehensive loss 

Items that vvi/1 not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss: 

Actuarial losses on defined benefit funds (442) (801) 

Income tax (exeensel/credit 7.1 {122} 223 

Total other comerehensive loss {564} (578) 
Total comprehensive income for the financial year 
attributable to owners of the 

The statement of comprehensive income is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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Statement of financial position 
as at 30 June 2017 

Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Trade and other receivables 

Related party receivables 

other assets 

Current tax receivable 

Investment securities 

Derivati\€s 

Reinsurance reco-..eries receivable 

Policyholder loans 

Policy liabilities ceded under reinsurance 

Loans and other receivables 

Deferred tax assets 

Employee defined benefit schemes surplus 

Total assets 

Liabilities 

Payables and other liabilities 

Related party payables 

Employee entitlements 

Outstanding claims liabilities 

Policy liabilities 

Deferred tax liabilities 

Employee defined benefit schemes deficit 

Total liabilities 

Net assets 

Equity 

Share capital 

Retained profits 

Total equity 

8 

23.2 

8 

7.3 

9 

10 

11 

15.1 

8 

7.4 

13 

12 

23.2 

13 

14 

15.1 

7.4 

13 

16 

26 

2017 

$'000 

18,001 

36,914 

218 

2,744 

4,403 

583,985 

7,515 

44,489 

5,402 

13,396 

17 

1,994 

255 

719,333 

.11,030 

3,780 

142,813 

17,805 

112,251 

4,084 

291,763 

427,570 

235,104 

192,466 

427,570 

The Board of Directors of Asteron Life Limited approved these financial statements for issue on 
31 July 2017. 

For, and on behalf of the Board 

l 
Director Director 

The statement of financial position is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 

2016 

$'000 

5,584 

15,057 

147 

2,490 

2,580 

622,802 

12,717 

44,802 

5,852 

15,035 

33 

2,868 

875 

730,842 

16,418 

2,085 

2,780 

137,129 

53,532 

103,490 

4,337 

319,771 

411,071 

235,149 

175,922 

411 ,071 
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Statement of changes in equity 
for the financial year ended 30 June 2017 

Em!I 
Share Retained Total 

Capital Profits Equity 
$'000 $'000 $'000 

Balance as at 1 July 2015 235,051 140,778 375,829 

Profit for the financial year 4 50,472 50,472 

Total other comerehensive loss (578} {578} 

Total comprehensive income for the financial year 49,894 49,894 

Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity 

Dividends paid 3 (14,750) (14,750) 

Share-based ealments 16 98 98 

Balance as at 30 June 2016 235,149 175,922 411,071 

Profit for the financial year 4 38,108 38,108 

Total other comerehensive loss {564} !564} 
Total comprehensive income for the financial year 37,544 37,544 

Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity 

Dividends paid 3 (21,000) {21,000) 
Share-based eayments 16 {45} (451 
Balance as at 30 June 2017 235,104 192,466 427,570 

The statement of changes in equity is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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Statement of cash flows 
for the financial year ended 30 June 2017 

Cash flows from operating activities 

Premiums received 

Reinsurance premiums paid 

Policy payments 

Reinsurance and other recoveries received 

Operating expenses paid 

Agents commission and bonuses paid 

Equity distributions receii,ed 

Interest received 

Income tax paid* 

Net cash from operating activities 

Cash flows from/(used in) investing activities 

Proceeds from the sale of investments 

Purchase of investments 

Repayments of policy loans 

Repayments of other loans 

Net cash from/(used in) investing activities 

Cash flows used in financing activities 

Dividends paid 

Net cash used in financing activities 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equiv.:ilents at the beginning of the financial year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year 

19 

3 

201'7 

$'000 

233,792 

(34,4rl5) 

(130,145) 

24,r137 

(42,408) 

(51,942) 

6,452 

rl6,283 

(10,205) 
1rl,549 

407,015 

(385,613) 

450 

16 

21,868 

(21,000) 
(21,000) 

12,417 

5,584 
18,001 

20r16 

$'000 

218,233 

(31,853) 

(123,361) 

24,457 

(43,292) 

(52,290) 

8,062 

17,513 

(8,105) 

9,364 

516,085 

(516,785) 

487 

21 

(192) 

(14,750) 

(14,750) 

(5,578) 

11,162 

5,584 

* Income tax paid includes cash flows from tax offsets and deferred tax asset transfers with related parties. 

The statement of cash flows is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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Notes the financial statements 

1. Reporting entity 

Asteron Life Limited (the Company) is a company incorporated and domiciled in New Zealand. Its 
registered office is at Level 13 Asteron Centre, 55 Featherston Street, Wellington and the head office is at 
48 Shortland Street, Auckland. 

The financial statements of the Company as at and for the financial year ended 30 June 2017 were 
issued by the Board of Directors on 31 July 2017. 

The Company is a profit oriented entity in the business of underwriting life insurance and the 
administration of long term savings products within New Zealand. 

The Company's parent entity is Suncorp Group New Zealand Limited, with Suncorp Group Limited, a 
company incorporated in Australia, being the ultimate parent entity. Suncorp Group Limited and its 
subsidiaries are referred to as the Suncorp Group. 

2. Basis of preparation 

The Company is a for-profit entity and the financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost 
basis unless the application of fair value measurements are required by the relevant accounting 
standards such as the measurement of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, defined benefit 
schemes and other actuarially determined balances. 

Significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out in Note 
28. There have been no significant changes to accounting policies during the financial year. 

The reporting period is from 1 July 2016 to 30 June 2017. 

These financial statements are presented in New Zealand dollars, which is the Company's functional and 
presentation currency. All values are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars ($'000) unless stated 
otherwise. 

The accompanying statement of financial position has been prepared using the liquidity format of 
presentation. 

2.1 Statement of compliance 

The financial statements are general purpose financial statements which have been prepared in 
accordance with New Zealand Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in New Zealand (NZ GAAP). 
They comply with the New Zealand equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (NZ IFRS), 
and other applicable Financial Reporting Standards as appropriate for profit oriented entities. The 
Company is an FMC reporting entity for the purpose of the Financial Markets Conduct Act 2013. The 
financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Financial Markets 
Conduct Act 2013, Companies Act 1993, Financial Reporting Act 2013 and the Insurance (Prudential 
Supervision) Act 2010. They also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). 
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Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

2.2 New or amended standards adopted during the financial year 

New reporting standards, amendments to standards and interpretations that became effective in the 
current financial year were not applicable to the Company or had no impact on these financial statements. 

2.3 Comparative information 

Certain amounts and presentations in the comparative information have been reclassified to conform to 
changes in the current financial year, but the impact of any reclassification is immaterial. 

2.4 Use of estimates and judgements 

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and amounts reported in the financial 
statements. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various 
other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Estimates and underlying 
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Where revisions are made to accounting estimates, any 
financial impact is recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised. 

The key areas of significant estimates and judgements and the methodologies used to determine key 
assumptions are set out below. 

a) Uncertainty over valuation of life insurance policy liabilities and outstanding claim 
liabilities 

Policy liabilities arising from life insurance contracts are computed at each reporting date using statistical 
and mathematical methods. The valuations are prepared by suitably qualified personnel on the basis of 
recognised actuarial methods and with due regard to the actuarial principles laid down in actuarial 
standards and guidance. The methodology takes into account the risks and uncertainties of the particular 
classes of business written. 

The key factors that affect the estimation of these liabilities are: 

• The cost of providing benefits and administering these insurance contracts; 

• Mortality and morbidity experience on individual and group life insurance products; including 
enhancements to benefits of policyholders and other amounts arising from regulatory interventions; 

• Persistency experience, which affects the company's ability to recover the cost of acquiring new 
business over the lives of the contracts; and 

• In addition, factors such as competition, interest rates, taxes, the performance of the capital markets 
and general economic conditions affect the level of these liabilities. 

The uncertainties surrounding these assumptions means that it is likely that the actual observed claims 
incidence will vary from the liability estimated at the reporting date. 

Details regarding actuarial estimates and judgements are detailed in Note 15.3. 

b) Assets arising from reinsurance contracts 

Assets arising from reinsurance contracts are also computed using the above methods. In addition, the 
recoverability of these assets is assessed on a periodic basis to ensure that the balance is reflective of 
the amounts that will ultimately be received, taking into consideration factors such as credit risk. 
Impairment is recognised where there is objective evidence that the company may not receive amounts 
due to it and these amounts can be reliably measured. Impairment is measured as the difference 
between the carrying amount and present value of estimated future cash flows. 
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Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

3. Dividends 

Ordinary shares 

Dividends paid 
Total dividends recognised in equity 

4. Sources of operating profit 

Profit for the financial year arose from: 

Planned margins of revenues over expenses released 

Difference between actual and assumed experience 

¢ per 
share 

12.9 

12.9 

Investment earnings on assets in excess of policyholder liabilities 
Profit for the financial year 

$'000 

21,000 

21~000 

• . 
¢ per 
share $'000 

9.1 14,750 

9.1 14,750 

$'000 $'000 

32,415 33,602 

2,931 (103) 

2,762 16,973 

38,108 50,472 

The participating policyholders profit, as included in the movement in policyholder liabilities for the year 
ended 30 June 2017, was $2.6 million (2016: $0.1 million). 

5. Revenue 

Insurance income 

Premiums received or receivable 

Premiums recognised as a change in gross policy liabilities (Note 15.1) 

Premium revenue 

Reinsurance recoveries revenue 

Total insurance revenue 

Investment income 

Interest income: 

Interest bearing securities 

Other 

Dividends 

Changes in fair value of financial assets: 

Investments 

Derivatives - realised and unrealised (losses )/gains 

Investment revenue 

Total revenue 

$'000 $'000 

233;188 222,136 

(7,581) (8,207) 

225,607 213,929 

21,9()3 37,667 

247,510 251,596 

16,124 16,802 

413 392 

6;438 8,077 

10,103 14,258 

(5,049) 10,464 

28,029 49,993 

275,539 301,589 

Premiums recognised as a change in policy liabilities pertain to the component of premium that relate to 
life investment contracts. 
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Notes to the financial statements {continued) 

6. Net claims and expenses 

Claims expenses 

Death and terminal illness 

Disability 

Annuities 

Maturities 

Surrenders and withdrawals 

Claims handling exeenses 

Gross claims expenses 
Less: Savings product claims disclosed as a change in policy 
liabilities (Note 15. 1) 

Total claims expense 

Reinsurance recoveries 

Net claims exeense 

Acquisition expenses 

Management expenses 

Commission exeenses 

Total acguisition exeenses 

Maintenance expenses 

Management expenses 

Commission exeenses 

Total maintenance exeenses 

Investment management expenses 

Change in unvested policy liabilities (Note 15.1) 

Change in insurance policy liabilities (Note 15.1) 

Change in policy liabilities ceded under reinsurance (Note 15.1) 

Change in investment contract liabilit}:'. benefits (Note 15.1) 
Net claims and expenses 

Included within net claims and expenses are the following specific 
items: 

Contributions to defined contribution superannuation schemes 

Employee benefits 

Movement in provision for bad and doubtful debts (Note 8) 

Operating lease rental expenses 

$'000 

!56,732 
38,209 

1,332 

5,200 

33,505. 

797 

135,775 

{31,336} 

1~4,439 

{21'.9~3} 
82,536 

20,194 

32,658 

52,852 

17,576 

19,259 

36,835 

1,336 

2,018 

{27,279) 

1,6,39 
13,289 

163;226 

204 
3,983 

197 
1,644 

$'000 

57,326 

60,043 

1,452 

11,600 

24,220 

759 

155,400 

(21,125} 

134,275 

(37,6672 

96,608 

21,525 

35,544 

57,069 

17,007 

17,142 

34,149 

1,155 

(765) 

(31,979) 

(4,412) 

9,013 

160,838 

632 

19,519 

(298) 

1,705 
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Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

7. Income tax 

7.1 Income tax expense 

Profit before tax 

Prima facie income tax at 28% 

Movement in income tax expense due to: 

Difference due to life insurance tax basis 

Non-taxable gains/(non-deductible losses) on revaluation of financial 
assets 

Non-deductible expenditure 

Non-taxable dividends 

Non-taxable revenue 

Imputation credits 

Other 

Adjustment for prior years 

Income tax expense 

Income tax expense recognised in profit consists of: 

Current tax expense 

Current year 

Adjustments for prior financial years 

Total current tax 

Deferred tax expense 

Current year 

Adjustments for prior financial years 

Total deferred tax 

Income tax expense 

Income tax expense/(credit) recognised in other comprehensive 
income 
Income tax expense/(credit) on actuarial losses on defined benefit funds 

7.2 Imputation credits 

SGHNZ ICA Group 
Imputation credits available for use in subsequent reporting periods 

$'000 

56,003 

15,681 

5,295 

(1,492) 

30 
(1,624) 

(72) 

(739) 

(241) 

1,057 

17,895 

8,753 

472 

9,225 

8,085 

585 

8,670 

17,895 

122 

$'000 

202,422 

I • 
$'000 

71,228 

19,944 

(1,217) 

710 

91 

{2,047) 

(744) 

(204) 

4,223 

20,756 

8,042 

4,258 

12,300 

8,491 

(35) 

8,456 

20,756 

(223) 

$'000 

166,819 

Together with other Suncorp entities, the Company is a member of the Suncorp Group Holdings (NZ) 
Limited imputation credit account group (SGHNZL ICA Group). All members of the SGHNZL ICA Group 

have access to the accumulated imputation credits contained within this SGHNZL ICA Group. 
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Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

7.3 Current tax 

Balance at the beginning of the financial year 

Income tax paid net of refunds 

Current year tax on operating profit 

Adjustment for prior financial years 

Transfers between related parties 
Balance at the end of the financial year 

7.4 Deferred tax 

$'000 

2,~o 
10;9(}0 

(8,753) 

{472) 

148 
4,403 

• • 
$'000 

6,775 

5,881 

(8,042) 

(4,258) 

2,224 

2,580 

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset 

current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same 
fiscal authority. The net deferred tax liability is detailed below: 

Deferred tax assets are attributable to: 

Employee benefits 

Depreciable and amortisable assets 

Trade creditors and other payables 

Total deferred tax assets 

Deferred tax liabilities are attributable to: 

Deferred tax in policyholder liabilities (Note 15.2) 

Investments 

Total deferred tax liabilities 

Net deferred tax liability 
Expected to crystallise within 12 months 

Expected to crystallise in greater than 12 months 

Policyholder liabilities 

Net deferred tax liability 

Movements 

Deferred tax assets 

Balance at the beginning of the financial year 

Charged to profit or loss 

Transfers between related parties 

Recognised in other comprehensive income 
Balance at the end of the financial year 

Deferred tax liabilities 

Balance at the beginning of the financial year 

Charged to profit or loss 
Balance at the end of the financial year 

$'000 $'000 

1,144 1,963 

2 5 

848 900 

1,994 2,868 

(111,481) (103,482) 

(770) (8) 

(112,251) (103,490) 

(110,257) (100,622) 

80 1,646 

1,144 1,214 

(11.1,481) (103,482) 

(110,257) (100,622) 

2,868 2,732 

91 (87) 

(843) 

(122) 223 

1,994 2,868 

(103,4:90) (95,121) 

(8,761) (8,369) 

(112,251) (103,490) 
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Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

7.5 Deferred tax on policy liabilities 

Life insurance policy liabilities represent the net present value of estimated future cash flows and planned 
profit margins. Using the margin on services methodology, planned after tax profit margins are recognised 
in the statement of comprehensive income over the period services are provided to policyholders. Life 
insurance companies are not taxed on pre-tax net holding profit. They are taxed on both the business 
activity of the life insurer base and the growth and value of the policyholders' investments. 

Taxable temporary differences, largely in respect of deferred acquisition costs, embedded within policy 
liabilities, which can be reliably measured, have been recognised and disclosed separately from the 
underlying policy liabilities. 

8. Receivables 

$'000 $'000 

Trade and other receivables 

Premiums due 467 738 

Trade and investment receivables 24,397 484 

Amounts due from reinsurers 11,056 12,783 

Other receivables 1,388 1,249 

Provision for bad and doubtful debts {394) {197} 

Total trade and other receivables 36;914 15,057 

Other assets 

Accrued income 2,477 2,487 

Preeaid exeenses 267 3 

Total other assets 2;744 2,490 

Loans and other receivables 

Other loans 17 33 

Loans and other receivables 17 33 

Total receivables 39,675 17,580 

Current 39,500 17,363 

Non-current 175 217 

Total receivables 39,675 17,580 

Movements in provision for bad and doubtful debts 

Balance at the beginning of the financial year 197 495 

Provision increase during the financial year 197 

Provision decrease durin~ the financial lear {298} 

Balance at the end of the financial lear 394 197 

Trade and investment receivables at 30 June 2017 include investment receivables of $24 million relating 
to the disposal of investment assets to meet claims in respect of the wind-up of a superannuation scheme 
managed by a related party which holds unit linked policies issued by the Company. 
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Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

9. Investment securities 

$'000 $'000 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

Interest bearing securities 

Debentures and corporate bonds 131,200 136,020 

Government and semi-go\€mment securities 120,545 118,514 

Discounted securities* 68,147 78,707 

Total interest bearing securities 319,892 333,241 

Equities 14,554 13,769 

Unit trusts 249,539 275,792 

Total investment securities 583,985 622,802 

* Discounted securities include floating rate notes, term deposits and commercial papers. 

10. Derivative financial instruments 

Notional Fair value Notional Fair value 
value Asset Liability value Asset Liability 
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

Foiward foreign exchange 
contracts 2,661 44 2,959 129 

Interest rate swaes 131,000 7,47.1 131,000 12,588 
Total derivatives 133,661 7,515 133,959 12,717 

The interest rate swap contracts with a notional value of $41,000,000 and $90,000,000 were entered into 
with Bank of New Zealand and Westpac Banking Corporation respectively (2016: $41,000,000 and 
$90,000,000). The Standard and Poors credit ratings of both counterparties as at balance date were AA-. 

11. Reinsurance recoveries receivable 

Reinsurance recoveries receivable 

Current 

Non-current 

Total reinsurance recoveries receivable 

12. Payables and other liabilities 

Trade creditors and accruals 

Collateral 

Amounts due to reinsurers 

Other creditors 

Total ea:£ables and other liabilities 

Current 

Total ealables and other liabilities 

$'000 $'000 

44,489 44,802 

6,727 6,769 

37,762 38,033 

44,489 44,802 

$'000 $'000 

3,536 6,143 

5,610 8,290 

1,754 1,762 

130 223 

11,030 16,418 

11,030 16,418 

11,030 16,418 

Floating rate interest bearing collateral is held in relation to the interest rate swaps with Westpac Banking 
Corporation as disclosed in Note 10, and is subject to ISDA Credit Supp·ort Annex and other- standard 
industry terms. The collateral is subject to interest based on the daily official cash rate. 
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Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

13. Employee benefit obligations 

$'000 $'000 

Emeloyee entitlements 2,780 

Employee defined benefit scheme surplus 255 875 

Emplolee defined benefit scheme deficit (4,084} (4,337) 

Net emeroiee defined benefit scheme liability 3,8.29 3,462 

Total net emelo~ee benefit obli~ations 3,829 6,242 

Current 2,780 

Non-current 3,829 3,462 

Total emelo:tee entitlements 3,829 6,242 

During the year ended 30 June 2017, a related entity Suncorp NZ Employees Limited (SNZEL) was 
established to act as the employer for certain Suncorp New Zealand companies. As a result, the 
Company's employee entitlements were transferred to SNZEL. The Company is now recharged for 
employee-related costs instead of incurring them directly as in prior periods. 

13.1 Defined benefit superannuation funds 

The Company participates in two defined benefit superannuation funds which provide benefits to 
members on retirement, disability or death. All defined benefit funds are now closed to new members, 
with new employees now being offered membership of a defined contribution fund. 

The following table summarises the surplus or deficit position for each defined benefit scheme. 

Surplus Deficit Net Surplus Deficit Net 
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

Vero & Asteron New Zealand Staff Pension 
Scheme (4,084) (4,084) (4,337) (4,337) 
Guardian Assurance Superannuation Plan 255 255· 875 875 
Total net defined benefit liability 255 {4,084) p,829} 875 ~4,337i !3,462l 

The characteristics of the defined benefit funds and their associated risks are summarised as follows: 

" Members receive regular pension payments or deferred pension payments. The amount of pension 
payable upon retirement of active members is determined based on final pensionable salary and 
pensionable service. Partial or full commutation of the pension may be allowed. 

" The Financial Markets Conduct Act 2013 (which replaced the Superannuation Schemes Act 1989) 
governs the superannuation industry and provides the framework within which superannuation funds 
operate. The Act requires an actuarial valuation to be performed for each defined benefit 
superannuation fund at least every three years. 

" The Trustees of each fund are responsible for the governance of the fund. The Trustees have a legal 
obligation to act solely in the best interests of fund beneficiaries. The Trustees have the following 
roles: 

Administration of the fund and payment to the beneficiaries from fund assets when required in 
accordance with the fund rules; 
Management and investment of the fund assets; and 
Compliance with superannuation law and other applicable regulations. 

o The Financial Markets Authority licenses and supervises regulated superannuation schemes. 

" There are a number of risks to which each fund exposes the Company. The more significant risks 
relating to the defined benefits are: 

Investment risk - The risk that investment returns will be lower than assumed and the Company 
will need to increase contributions to offset this shortfall; 

Mortality risk - The risk that the members of the fund will live longer than assumed, increasing 
the number of pension payments and thereby requiring additional company contributions; and 
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Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

13.1 Defined benefit superannuation funds (continued) 

Legislative risk - The risk is that legislative changes could be made which increase the cost of 
providing the defined benefits. 

.. Other Suncorp Group entities participate in the funds, the amounts included in these financial 
statements relate to the Company's share in relation to the members that are attributable to the 
Company. The Company is not liable for any deficits or contributions attributable to other Suncorp 
Group entities. 

.. There were no fund amendments or curtailments during the year. The Vero & Asteron New Zealand 
Staff Pension Scheme cash offer payment has been treated as a settlement, as have the redundancy 
payments made to Vero & Asteron New Zealand Staff Pension Scheme and Guardian Assurance 
Superannuation Plan members. 

a) Present value of superannuation commitments 

Fair value of fund assets at the end of the financial year 

Defined benefit obligations at the end of the financial year 

Asset ceiling 

Adjustments for contributions tax 

Net liability recognised in the statement of financial position 

$'000 

35,133 

(37,6~8) 

(1,264) 

(3,829) 

The values of assets and liabilities shown above are the combined values of the two funds. 

$'000 

36,290 

(37,280) 

(1,330) 

(1,142) 

(3,462) 
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Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

b) Reconciliation of movements 

Changes in the fair value of fund assets 

Balance at the beginning of the financial year 

Interest income 

Actual return on plan assets less interest income 

Contributions 

Benefits paid 

Premiums and expenses paid 

Settlements 

Balance at the end of the financial year 

Changes in the present value of defined benefit fund obligations 

Balance at the beginning of the financial year 

Current service cost 

Interest expense 

Actuarial gains arising from changes in demographic assumptions 

Actuarial losses arising from changes in financial assumptions 

Actuarial losses arising from liability experience 

Benefits paid 

Premiums and expenses paid 

Settlements 

Balance at the end of the financial year 

Effect of the asset ceiling 

Balance at the beginning of the financial year 

Interest on effect of asset ceiling 

Change in effect of asset ceiling (excluding interest) 

Balance at the end of the financial year 

c) Categories of fund assets 

Major categories of fund assets as a percentage of total fund 
assets 

Equity 

Fixed income 

Other 

Cash 

$'000 

36,290 

9:49 

842 

25 

(2,434) 

(73) 

(466) 
. 35,133 

{37,?80) 

(153) 

(975) 

(1,206) 

{1,298) 

2,434 

73 

707 

(37,698) 

(1,330) 

(36) 

1,366 

% 

48.6 

45.2 

1.6 

4.6 

$'000 

37,517 

1,327 

841 

157 

(2,390) 

(77) 

(1,085) 

36,290 

(35,635) 

(178) 

(1,247) 

229 

(3,595) 

(605) 

2,390 

77 

1,284 

(37,280) 

(3,780) 

(143) 

2,593 

(1,330) 

% 

48.4 

45.2 

1.7 

4.7 

The table above reflects the aggregate assets of the two defined benefit funds the Company participates 
in. 

A review of the strategic asset allocation is undertaken periodically with the last review being completed 
in November 2013. The strategic asset allocation is implemented via investment mandates with external 
fund managers which sets a target weighting across asset classes to ensure appropriate asset-liability 
matching as well as benchmark return objectives. 
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Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

d) Principal actuarial assumptions 

The principal assumptions used in determining the accounting valuation of the defined benefit funds are as 
follows: 

Vero & Asteron New Zealand Staff Pension Scheme 

Discount rate (gross of tax) 

Future salary increases 

Guardian Assurance Superannuation Plan 

Discount rate (gross of tax) 

Future salary increases 

% 

3.5 
2.25for2 

years then 2.5 
thereafter 

3.3 
NIA 

% 

3.0 

3.0 

2.7 

3.0 

Mortality assumptions are based on the New Zealand Life Tables 2012-2014 with a one-year age setback 
and an age related future mortality improvement scale, starting from 2013 (the mid-point of the period on 
which the base Life Table was produced). A one year offset is used to reflect the lower mortality expected 
of pensioners relative to the overall New Zealand population. 

The weighted average duration (in years) of each of the defined benefit funds obligation is: 

Vero & Asteron New Zealand Staff Pension Scheme 

Guardian Assurance Superannuation Plan 

e) Sensitivity analysis 

13 

10 

14 

11 

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding 
all other assumptions constant, would have affected the aggregate defined benefit obligation through 
other comprehensive income by the amounts shown below: 

Discount rate movement (100 basis points) 

Future salary increases (100 basis points) 

One year movement in life expectancy 

Increase 

$'000 

(3,617) 

17· 
1,672 

Decrease 

$'000 

4,348 

(17} 
{1,652) 
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Notes to the financial statements {continued) 

f) Funding 

The objective of funding is to ensure that the benefit entitlements of members and other beneficiaries are 

fully funded by the time they become payable. The funding requirements are based on an actuarial 

valuation performed for each defined benefit superannuation fund at least once every three years. The 
actuarial valuations for funding purposes prepared under applicable actuarial standards are different to 
the actuarial valuations prepared in accordance with accounting standards. Assumptions used in actuarial 

valuations for funding purposes may also be different to those described in the section above. 

For the Vero & Asteron New Zealand Staff Pension Scheme, other Suncorp Group entities also 

participate in the fund. The most recent statutory review was carried out as at 31 March 2014. The 

employers are currently contributing at a rate of 20% of active members' salaries (inclusive of contribution 
tax). In addition, currently each year lump sum contributions are considered; the amounts are subject to 

review by the trustees and employers following the actuary's interim actuarial advice. The most recent 
lump sum was $950,000 (inclusive of contribution tax) made in the year to 30 June 2016. A statutory 

review is being carried out as at 31 March 2017, but has yet to be reported on at the date of this report. 

For the Guardian Assurance Superannuation Plan the most recent statutory review was carried out as at 

30 June 2015 and on the basis of that review no employer contributions are currently required. 

The company intends to contribute $15,000 to the defined benefit funds in the financial year ending 30 
June 2018, being 20% of active members' salary in the Vero & Asteron New Zealand Staff Pension 

Scheme. Further amounts may be payable based on the statutory review which is currently being 

undertaken. 

14. Outstanding claims liabilities 

$'000 $'000 

Outstandine claims liabilities 142,813 137,129 

Current 44,141 41,315 

Non-current 98,672 95,814 

Total outstandin~ claims liabilities 142,813 137,129 
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Notes to the financial statements 

15. Life policy liabilities 

15.1 Net policy liabilities 

The following table shows the movements in net life insurance and investment contract liabilities. 

Gross 
policies 

Unvested Total gross ceded 
Insurance Investment policyholders policy under Net policy 
contracts contracts benefit liabilities reinsurance liabilities 

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

Balance as at 30 June 2015 (159,235) 225,177 24,239 90,181 10,623 79,558 

Movament in policy liabilities 
reflected in profit or loss (31,979) 9,013 (22,966) 4,412 (27,378) 

Contributions and premiums 
recognised in policy liabilities 8,207 8,207 8,207 
Withdrawals and claims 
expense recognised in policy 
liabilities (21,125) (21,125) (21,125) 
Movament in unvasted 
polic}:'.holder benefits (7651 (765} (765) 
Balance as at 30 June 2016 (191,214l 221,272 23,474 53,532 15,035 38,497 

Current (21,220) (21,220) 5,257 (26,477) 

Non-current (169,994) 23,474 (146,520) 9,778 (156,298) 

lnvastment contract 221,272 221,272 221,272 

Balance as at 30 June 2016 (191,214) 221,272 23,474 53,532 15,035 38,497 

Movament in policy liabilities 
reflected in profit or loss (27,279) 13,289 (13,990} (1,639) (12,351) 

Contributions and premiums 
recognised in policy liabilities 7;581 7,581 7,581 
Withdrawals and claims 
expense recognised in policy 
liabilities (31,336) (31,336) (31,336) 
Movament in unvasted 
polic}:'.ho!der benefits 2,018 2,018 2,018 
Balance as at 30 June 2017 {218,493} 210,806 25,492 •17,805 13,396 4,409 

Current (19,349) (19,~9) 4,72;7 (24,076) 

Non-current (199,144) 25,492 (173,652) 8,669 (182,321) 

lnvastment contract 210,806 210,806 210,806 

Balance as at 30 June 2017 (218,493! 210,806 25,492. 17,805 13,396 4,409 
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Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

15.2 Components of life insurance contract liabilities 

Best estimate liability 

iMiiW 
$'000 

1,3()8,901 

781,877 

• . 
$'000 

1,162,290 

708,736 

Value of future policy benefits 1 

Value of future expenses 

Balance of future premiums (2,5135,1~7) (2,292,646) 

Total best estimate liability 

Value offuture profits 

Policyholder bonuses 2 

Shareholder profit margins 

Total value of future profits 

Deferred tax liability in policyholder liabilities 

Net insurance policy liabilities net of deferred tax 

Life insurance reinsurance ceded 

Gross insurance contract policy liabilities 

Policy liabilities subject to capital guarantee 

Notes 

7.4 

(494:359} (421,620) 

7,402 348 

366,549 318,505 

373,951 318,853 

(111,481) (103,482) 

(231;889) (206,249) 

13;396 15,035 

(218,493) (191,214) 

11,234 12,020 

1. Future policy benefits include bonuses vested in policy owners in current and prior periods. 
2. Future bonuses exclude current period bonuses. 

15.3 Actuarial policies and methods for the life insurance business 
a) Life liability estimation process 

The effective date of the actuarial valuation of policy liabilities and solvency requirements is 30 June 
2017. The actuarial valuation was prepared by Ms Kate Dron, Appointed Actuary, FIA FNZSA. The 
Appointed Actuary is satisfied as to the accuracy of the data upon which policy liabilities have been 
determined. 

Policy liabilities for life insurance contracts are amounts which, when taken together with future premiums 
and investment earnings are required to meet the payment of future benefits and expenses, and 

incorporate profit margins on existing business to be released when earned in future periods. 

Policy liabilities for life investment contracts are determined as the fair value of the financial instrument. 

b) Disclosure of assumptions 

The valuations included in the reported results are calculated using assumptions about certain key 
underlying variables. The assumptions are determined by the Appointed Actuary based on the results of 
annual investigations into the experience of the Company's in force business, industry experience data 
and data provided by the Company's reinsurers. 

Policy liabilities have been calculated in accordance with the New Zealand Society of Actuaries 
Professional Standard No. 20 Determination of Life Insurance Policy Liabilities (PS20). 

The actuarial standards require the policy liabilities for life insurance contracts to be calculated in a way 
which allows for the systematic release of planned margins as services are provided to policy owners. 
Policy liabilities for investment contracts are calculated as the fair value of the liability. 
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Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

b) Disclosure of assumptions (continued) 

The profit carriers used and the method of valuation applied for the major product groups in order to 
achieve the systematic release of planned margins are as follows: 

Lump iJm risk business 

Disability i.ncome .business 

Traditional non-participating business 

Traditional partlcipating business 

Annuity 

Discount Rates 

.· Projection 

Projection 

Projection 

Projection 

Projection 

Premiums 

Pre111i.urns 

Claims payments 

Bonuses 

Annuity payments 

Where the value of benefits under a life insurance contract is not contractui:!IIY linked to the performance 
of the assets held, risk-free discount rates derived from the government bond curve are used to 
determine the present value of the liabilities. A discount rate based on the market return on the backing 
assets is applied where the value of benefits are contractually linked to the performance of the assets. 

The risk free discount rates (before tax) applied for all life insurance business, with the exception of 
contracts with discretionary participating features, vary between 1.94% and 4.08% (2016: 2.06% -
3.43%). 

The discount rate for business with discretionary participating features is based on the market yield on 
backing assets. This yield was 3.7% (2016: 3.1%) gross of tax and investment expenses. 

Inflation 
Allowance for future inflation of 2.25% per annum (2016: 2.25%) is assumed. This level is consistent with 
long term expectations. 

Future expenses and indexation 
Future investment expenses have been assumed to be at the same percentage of assets under 
management as currently applies to the actual assets backing the liabilities. Future maintenance 
expenses per policy have been assumed at current levels increased by the rate of inflation set out above. 
For contracts which provide for the increase of future benefits in line with inflation, the benefit indexation 
rate has been assumed to be 2.25% per annum (2016: 2.25%). It is further assumed that the benefit 
indexation will be taken up by a percentage, determined in line with the Company's recent experience, of 
the eligible policyholders. 

Rates of taxation 
Rates of taxation have been assumed to be at 28% (2016: 28%) 

The rate of GST has been assumed to be 15% (2016: 15%). 

Asset mix 
The assumptions regarding asset mix are based on the target mix of assets. 
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b) Disclosure of assumptions (continued) 

Mortality 
Mortality rates for risk products, which vary by sex, age and smoking status, have been based on the 
Company's recent experience. Further adjustments are applied for direct marketing products and for 
some closed products on the observed experience for this business. The rates shown in the following 
table are aggregate rates before smoker/non-smoker adjustments. 

Females 68% - 95% IA9597 68% - 95% IA9597 

IA9597 are the Graduated Mortality Tables IA95-97 issued by The Institute of Actuaries of Australia. 

Mortality rates for some direct marketed products are based on NZ population mortality tables and have 
been set at 60%-90% NZ9092 (2016: 60%-90%) for males and 60%-90% NZ9092 (2016: 60%-90%) for 
females. 

Annuitant mortality rates, which vary by age and sex, have been based on industry experience. They are 
set at 73% (2016: 73%) of the IM80 and IF80 UK tables of the immediate annuity tables published by The 
Institute of Actuaries allowing for future mortality improvement. 

Disability 
Disability income benefit incidence and termination rates were based on the graduated morbidity tables 
for disability income business prepared by KPMG at the request of the Financial Services Council of 
Australia (FSC-KPMG ADI 2007-2011 ). In each case the rates were adjusted by factors dependent on the 
Company's recent experience and the nature of benefits. Claim incidence and termination rates are as 
shown below. In 2016 the rates were based on the IAD tables published by the Institute of Actuaries of 
Australia. 

Incidence between 89% and 309% ADI 2007-2011 (2016: Incidence between 73% and 98% IAD 89-93). 

Termination between 71% and 115% ADI 2007-2011 (2016: Termination between 30% and 80% IAD 89-
93). 

Claim rates for lump sum disability benefits were based on various tables reflecting New Zealand and 
Australian experience, adjusted by factors dependent on group experience and the nature of benefits. 

Voluntary discontinuance 

Future rates of discontinuance for the major classes of business assumed, varied by duration and class of 
business, were in the order of: 

Disability.income 

Conventional 

3-15 

3 

Higher discontinuances are assumed for policyholders aged over 60. Higher discontinuances are 
assumed where premium rates have recently been increased. 

Surrender values 
Current surrender value bases have been assumed to be maintained. No change from last year. 

3 
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b) Disclosure of assumptions (continued) 

Bonuses 
Future bonuses in policy liabilities are those supported by the supporting assets together with the current 
premium rates and other assumptions. 

Bonus rates and interest crediting rates are reviewed at least once a year after taking into consideration 

the investment experience of the underlying assets, other experience of the business such as the 
experience of lapse and mortality, the reasonable expectation of the policyholders and equity among 
different lines of products. The actual bonus rates and interest crediting rates declared may include a 
certain degree of smoothing. Terminal bonus rates vary by duration and product lines. 

Future participating benefits 
For participating business, the Company's policy is to set reversionary bonus rates such that over long 
periods together with terminal bonuses where applied, the returns to policy owners are commensurate 
with the investment returns achieved on relevant assets, together with other sources of profit arising from 
this business. Distributions are split between policy owners and shareholders with the valuation allowing 
for shareholders to share in distributions up to the maximum allowable rate of 20%. In applying the policy 
owners' share of retained profits to provide bonuses, consideration is given to equity between generations 
of policy owners and equity between the various classes in force. 

c) Processes used to select assumptions 

An explanation of the method used to determine the individual applied assumptions is described below. 

Mortality and morbidity 
An appropriate base table of mortality is chosen for the type of product being written. An investigation into 
the actual experience of the Company is performed and statistical methods are used to adjust the rates 
reflected in the table to a best estimate of expected mortality based on the investigation results and 
industry benchmarks. A similar process is adopted for morbidity. 

Lapse 
An investigation into the actual experience of the Company is performed and statistical methods are used 
to determine an appropriate lapse rate. Allowance is made for any trends in the data to arrive at a best 
estimate of future lapse rates. 

d) Effects of changes in actuarial assumptions from 30 June 2016 to 30 June 2017 

Assumption category 

Discount rates (risk business) 

Mortality and morbidity 

Lapse and surrender rates 

Maintenance expenses 

Inflation rate 

Premium rate changes 

Total 

Future profit Policy liability 
increase/(decrease) increase/ (decrease) 

$'000 $'000 

(12,~51) 
(17,059) 

20,888 

19,729 

(213) 

6,081 

2,687 

(1} 
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e) Sensitivity analysis 

Life insurance and investment contracts are affected by the same subset of variables (mainly arising from 
financial risks and risks associated with events in human life like death or diseases) and as a result are 
presented together in this note. 

The tables below illustrate the sensitivity of reported profit or loss to changes in assumptions that have a 
material effect on it. 

Change in discount rates 

Change in mortality and morbidity 

Change in lapse rate 

Change of expense assumption 

16. Share capital 

Issued and fully paid ordinary shares 

Preference shares 

Shareholder contribution under equity settled employee 
share plans 

Total share capital 

Movements in shareholder contributions under 
equity settled employee share plans 

Balance at the beginning of the financial year 

Contributions 

Balance at the end of the financial year 

Change in Profit (loss) 
variable 

+1% 

-1% 

+10% 

-10% 

+10% 

-10% 

+10% 

Shares 
No. (000) 

162,342 

45,000 

207,342 

after tax 
$'000 

(961) 

2,169 

(12,006) 

2,377 

(677) 

677 

Shares 
$'000 

189,230 

45,000 

874 

235,104 

919 

(45) 
874 

Change in Profit (loss) 
variable 

+1% 

-1% 

+10% 

-10% 

+10% 

-10% 

+10% 

-10% 

Shares 
No. (000) 

162,342 

45,000 

207,342 

after tax 
$'000 

(2,967) 

3,135 

(2,506) 

2,506 

(697) 

697 

Shares 
$'000 

189,230 

45,000 

919 

235,149 

821 

98 

919 

As at 30 June 2017, the Company had 162,342,450 ordinary shares issued to Suncorp Group New 
Zealand Limited (2016: 162,342,450). The Company does not have authorised capital or par value in 
respect of its issued shares which all rank equally and are fully paid. 

The dividends on the redeemable preference shares are payable at the discretion of the Company. 
Similarly, the redeemable preference shares are redeemable at the discretion of the Company. In the 
event of liquidation of the Company, the holder of the redeemable preference shares do not participate in 
any distribution of profits or assets of the Company. 

Each ordinary and preference share is entitled to one vote. 
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17. Capital management 

17.1 Capital management policies and objectives 

The Company is part of the Suncorp Group. The capital strategy of the Suncorp Group is to optimise 
shareholder value by managing the level, mix and use of capital resources. The primary objective is to 
ensure there are sufficient capital resources to maintain and grow the business, in accordance with risk 
appetite. The Suncorp Group's Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP) provides the 
framework to ensure that the Suncorp Group as a whole, and each regulated entity, is independently 
capitalised to meet internal and external requirements. The ICAAP is reviewed regularly and, where 
appropriate, adjustments are made to reflect changes in the capital needs and risk profile of the Suncorp 

Group. 

The Company is a licensed insurance company in accordance with the Insurance (Prudential 
Supervision) Act 2010 (IPSA) and manages its capital in accordance with the requirements of IPSA and 
the Solvency Standard for Life Insurance Business (the Solvency Standard) issued by the Reserve Bank 
of New Zealand. 

The Company is required to maintain a minimum solvency margin of at least $0 for each of the 
shareholder and statutory funds, i.e. actual solvency capital as determined under the Solvency Standard 
should be at or above the minimum solvency capital level. The Company is also required to retain a 
minimum fixed capital of at least $5 million. Fixed capital is the minimum amount of Actual Solvency 
Capital (as defined in the Solvency Standard) that the Company is required to hold at all times. 

The Company satisfied all externally imposed capital requirements which it was subject to during the year 
ended 30 June 2017. 

The Company has embedded in its capital management framework, the necessary tests to ensure 
continuous and full compliance with the Solvency Standard. 

The Board Audit and Risk Committee (BARC) oversees capital computations and maintains optimal 
capital structure by advising the Board on dividend payments and share issues. In addition, the Company 
manages its required level of capital through analysis and optimisation of the Company's product and 
asset mix, reinsurance program, catastrophe exposure and investment strategy. 

17.2 Capital composition 

The Company manages its capital by considering both regulatory and economic capital. The primary 
source of capital used by the Company is total equity attributable to owners. Total equity attributable to 
owners is included in the definition of "capital" as defined in the Solvency Standard. 

17.3 Regulatory capital 

Regulatory capital is made up of two components, actual solvency capital and minimum solvency capital 
with the difference representing the solvency margin. The calculation of the solvency margin for the 
Company is detailed below: 

Statutory Shareholder Statutory Shareholder 
Fund Fund Total Fund Fund Total 
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

Actual solvancy capital 376,958 1,298 378,256 404,372 2,963 407,335 

Minimum soll,enc}'. caeital 347,574 156 ·. 347,730 376,607 212 376,819 

Solvenci mar~in 29,384 1,142 30,526 27,765 2,751 30,516 

Solvenc:i ratio . 1.08 ·.8.32 1.09 1.07 13.98 1.08 
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18. Credit rating 

The Company holds a credit rating of A+ from Standard & Poors (2016: A+). 

19. Notes to the statement of cash flows 

Profit for the financial year 

Non-cash items 

Investment income - changes in fair value of financial assets 

Change in policy liabilities (including unvested) 

Movement in defined benefit funds through profit 

Deferred tax charged on defined benefit scheme 

Share-based payments 

Change in assets and liabilities 

Decrease/(increase) in receivables net of investment receivables 

Decrease/(increase) in reinsurance recoveries receivable 

(lncrease)/decrease in other assets 

Increase in outstanding claims liabilities 

Decrease in unearned premiums liabilities 

Decrease in employee entitlements 

Decrease in payables net of investment payables 

Increase in tax balances 

Decrease in eolicy liabilities due to eremiums and claims 

Net cash from oeeratina activities 

20. Financial instruments 

20.1 Measurement 

$'000 $'000 

38,108 50,472 

(5,0S4) (24,722) 

(10,333) (28,143) 

(75) (172) 

(122) 223 

(45) 98 

2,604 (3,101) 

313 (10,026) 

(254) 319 

5,684 32,048 

(3,714) 

(2,780) (476) 

(554) (2,952) 

7,812 12,428 

{23,755} {12,918) 

11,549. 9,364 

Investments and derivatives are recognised and measured at fair value and therefore their carrying value 
equates to their fair value. 

Investments traded in an active market are valued at the closing quoted market price. 

Assets and liabilities that are not recognised and measured at fair value include cash and cash 
equivalents, policyholder and other loans, trade and other receivables, related party receivables and 
payables, and payables and other liabilities. The basis of recognition and measurement of these financial 

assets and liabilities is described in Note 28. 
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20.2 Fair value hierarchy 

Financial assets and liabilities that are recognised and measured at fair value are categorised by a 
hierarchy which identifies the most significant input used in the valuation methodology: 

.. Level 1 - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical financial instruments. 

.. Level 2 - derived from other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the 
financial instruments, either directly or indirectly. 

.. Level 3 - fair value measurement is not based on observable market data. 

The Level 2 securities held by the Company represent investment securities and derivatives valued using 
a market comparison technique. For investment securities the fair value is calculated using observable 
inputs from a non-active market for an identical security with the valuation reflecting the exit price for the 
security. For derivatives the fair value is based on broker quotes adjusted for credit valuation to reflect 
credit risk. Similar contracts are traded in an active market and the quotes reflect the actual transactions 
in similar instruments. 

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

As at 30 June 2017 

Assets 

Investment securities 146,410 437,575 583,985 

Derivatives 7,515 7,515 

Total 146,410 445,090 591,500 
As at 30 June 2016 
Assets 

Investment securities 126,440 496,362 622,802 

Derivatives 12,717 12,717 

Total 126,440 509,079 635,519 

There have been no material transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the year ended 30 June 2017. 
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20.3 Accounting classification 

The carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities shown in the statement of financial position are as 
follows: 

As at 30 June 2017 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Trade and other receivables and loans 

Related party receivables 

Other assets 

Policyholder loans 

ln1,estment securities 

Derivati1,es 

Total 

Payables and other liabilities 

Related party payables 

Total 

As at 30 June 2016 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Trade and other receivables and loans 

Related party receivables 

Other assets 

Policyholder loans 

ln1,estment securities 

Derivati1,es 

Total 

Payables and other liabilities 

Related party payables 

Employee entitlements 

Total 

Designated 
at fair value 

$'000 

583,985 

. 7,515 

591,500 

622,802 

12,717 

635,519 

At amortised cost 

Loans and Other financial Carrying 
receivables liabilities amounts 

$'000 $'000 $'000 

18,001 

36,931 

218 
2,744 

5,402 

63,296 

5,584 

15,090 

147 

2,490 

5,852 

29,163 

18,001 

36;931 

218 

2,744 
5,402 

583!985 

7,515 

.654,796 

(11,030} (11,030) 

(3, 780} (3, 780) 

(14,810} (14,810) 

5,584 

15,090 

147 

2,490 

5,852 

622,802 

12,717 

664,682 

(16,418) (16,418) 

(2,085) (2,085) 

(2,780) (2,780) 

(21,283) (21,283) 
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20.4 Master netting or similar arrangements 

The Company is party to certain interest rate swap agreements with New Zealand based financial 
institutions which are settled on a net basis. The financial asset and liability positions under these 
contracts are offset within the statement of financial position. The table below shows the impact of this 
offsetting: 

As at 30 June 2017 
Financial assets 
Interest rate swaps 
As at 30 June 2016 

Financial assets 
Interest rate swaps 

21. Risk management 

Gross 
amounts 

$'000 

7,471 

12,588 

Offsetting 
applied 

$'000 

21.1 Risk management objectives and structure 

presented in cash 
the statement collateral 

of financial which are Net 
position not offset exposure 

$'000 $'000 $'000 

7,471 (5,610) 1,861 

12,588 (8,290) 4,298 

The Company and its related companies are entities within the Suncorp Group: as a result, the Company 
and its related companies work within the context of the Suncorp Group risk management objectives. 
The Company and Vero Insurance New Zealand Limited (VINZL) together comprise the Suncorp New 
Zealand (SNZ) Function in the Suncorp Group. SNZ is not a legal entity. 

The Company's Board recognises that effective risk management is considered to be critical to the 
achievement of the Company's objectives. This is consistent with the Suncorp Group Board. The 
Company's BARC is responsible for making recommendations to the Company's Board in fulfilling its 
responsibilities with respect to the oversight of all categories of risk, which includes the identification, 
assessment and management of risk, and adherence to risk management and other policies and 
procedures. 

A Group Board approved Enterprise Risk Management Framework (ERMF) is in place for the Suncorp 
Group. It is subject to an annual review, updated for material changes as they occur and is also approved 
by the Company's Board. The ERMF comprises: 

e the Suncorp Group's Risk Appetite Statement (RAS) and its link to strategic business and capital 
plans. Risk Appetite is set at Suncorp Group level and at the Function level in Board-approved 
RAS. The SNZ RAS applies to the Company and VINZL; 

e accountabilities and governance arrangements for the management of risk within the Three Lines 
of Defence model; and 

risk management processes. 
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21.1 Risk management objectives and structure (continued) 

The Three Lines of Defence model of accountability involves: 

F !\'fana'ge'n 
comply with Qompany 
adopted Suncorp Gmup, 
anci ComJ'.)any ~pecific 
frame:works, policies, 
standards and 
guidelines, and the 
Company's risk appetite 

Second-:- Independent 
functions own and 
monito.r the application 
of risk frameworks, and 
measure and report on 
risk performance and 
compliance 

Third -, Independent 
assurance over internal 
controls and risk 
management practices 

1 =""~? - """ >" y= 

Responsibili~ of " 
0+' ~--# 

Allrisk functions 

Internal auditors and 
specifidobligations of 
the Appointed 
Actuaries. 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

IO~ofify ?11cf mancige. the ri~I<~ ipher ent in 
operations including control. testing 

Ensure compliance with .all legal ahd regulatory 
requiremenfs and Company adopted Suncorp 
Group, and Company specific policies 

Promptly escalate any significant actual and 
emerging risks for management attention. 

Design, implement an.ct. manage the ongoing 
maintenance of risk frameworks and related 

policies 

Advise and partner :with.the business in the 9esign 
and. execution of ris.k frameworks a.nd practices 

Develop, apply and execute risk frameworks . 

Facilitate the reporting of the. appropriateness and 
quafjty of risk management. 

Decides the. level and extent of independent 
testing required to verify the efficacy of internal 
controls 

Validates the overall risk framework 

• Provide$ assurance th.at the risk management 
practices are functioning as intended. 

The Company's Board has approved various frameworks, policies and limits relating to key categories of 
risk faced by the Company. Management has the primary responsibility and accountability for embedding 
the risk management framework within the business operations of the Company. SNZ has a Chief Risk 
Officer (CRO) who has the management responsibility for risk, compliance and related issues. This 
person reports directly to the SNZ CEO and indirectly reports to the Group Chief Risk Officer employed 
by the ultimate parent company. 

SNZ has in place a number of Management Committees, each with its own charter or terms of reference, 
to execute specified responsibilities in the risk framework. 

These committees include an Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO) and a Risk and Governance 
Committee (RGC). The primary role of the ALCO is to oversee the management of selected financial 
risks arising from the activities of the SNZ businesses within the SNZ Boards approved risk parameters: 
Insurance Risk: includes the following economic aspects - Pricing, Reserving, Concentration and 
Reinsurance; Counterparty Risk; Market Risk; Balance Sheet Risk; and Liquidity Risk. 

The ALCO provides effective governance over aspects of the risk framework designed to optimise the 
long-term returns achieved by portfolios within any risk appetite or parameters established by the Boards. 

The primary role of the RGC is to oversee the management of governance and other non-financial 
aspects of selected risks arising from the activities of the businesses within the SNZ Boards approved risk 
parameters: Insurance Risk, Compliance Risk, Operational Risk and Strategic Risk. 

The Company's risk strategy is documented in the Board-approved SNZ Risk Management Programme 
(RMP). The RMP is intended to fulfil the requirements for a Risk Program to be put in place for licensed 
insurers in New Zealand pursuant to IPSA and is to be read in conjunction with the ERMF which 
cascades to SNZ via the RMP in a New Zealand context. The RMP is subject to annual review and is 
submitted to the Reserve Bank of New Zealand. 
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21.1 Risk management objectives and structure (continued) 

The key risks addressed by the ERMF are described below: 

~Q de/~!!/ '" = 

:Key rcisks 
s-- :: ,~ ~ ,,,",c 0,, 

Credit risk 

Liqui~ity risk 

Market risk 

Asset and liability 
risk 

Insurance risk 

Operational risk 

Compliance risk 

Strategic risk 

Thenskfliattfi~ other party ih>an ·agr~mer1fwiil default I Wiffhof mee ·its··· 
contractual obligations in accordance with agreed terms. 

The risktllatthe Company.will.be.unctble to service its cash flow obligations today 
or in thefuture. 

The risk of unfavourable changes in foreign exchange rates, interest rates, equity 
prices, credit spreads and market volatilities. 

The risk to EJarnings and capit~I from. mismatches .between assets and liabilities 
with varying matµrity and repricing profiles and from mismatches in term. 

The. risk tha.t for any class of risk insured, the present value of actual claims 
payable will exceed the present value of actual premium revenues generated (net 
of reinsurance). 

The risk of loss i'eS!Jlting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and 
systems or from external events. This includes legal risk, but excludes strategic 
and reputational risks. 

The .risk of legal pr regulatory sanctions, financial loss, or loss of reputation which 
the Company may suffeff as a result of its failure to comply with all applicable 
regulations, codes of conduct and good practice standards. 

The risk that t.he Company's business model or strategy is not viable due to 
uncertainties in the future operating environment. 

Further discussions on the application of the Company's risk management practices are presented in the 
following sections: 

• Note 21.2 Insurance risk management; and 
• Note 21,3 to 21.5 Risk management for financial instruments: credit, market and liquidity risks. 

Financial instrument risk is not assessed on a look through basis. 

21.2 Insurance risk management 
a) Policies and practices for mitigating insurance risk 

Controls are implemented to manage the following components of insurance risk: 

• pricing, including pricing strategies, technical pricing and pricing adequacy reviews; 

• roles and responsibilities for pricing, the development and approval of new products and changes 
to existing products; 

• processes that identify and respond to changes in the internal and external environment impacting 
insurance products; 

• underwriting, including processes to consider aggregate exposures from a portfolio perspective to 
determine the actual exposure to particular risks or an event, monitoring of significant accumulation 
and concentration of risk, and guidelines around the utilisation of reinsurance in pricing and 
underwriting; 

• delegated authorities for the acceptance, assessment and settlement of claims including 
operational and ex-gratia authority limits; 

• procedures relating to the notification, assessment, evaluation, settlement and closure of claims, 
and processes to detect and reduce loss associated with claims risk; and 

" reserving practices and procedures at individual claim and portfolio level. 
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21.2 Insurance risk management (continued) 

Concentration of insurance risk is mitigated through diversification over classes of insurance business, 
industry segments, the use of reinsurer coverage and ensuring there is an appropriate mixture of 
business. 

The concentration of insurance risk is also managed by ensuring an appropriate mixture of individual and 
group insurance business split between mortality, morbidity and annuity benefit payments. Exposure to 
risk of large claims for individual lives is managed through monitoring of the Company's in-force business 
and the mix of new business written each year. 

b) Terms and conditions of insurance contracts 

The nature and terms of the insurance contracts written is such that certain external variables can be 
identified on which related cash flows for claim payments depend. 

The following table provides an overview of the key variables upon which the timing and uncertainty of 
future cash flows of the various life insurance and investment contracts issued by the Company depend. 

[011g term ho'n­
partiqipating life 
insurance .contracts 
with fixed and 
guaranteed terms. 
(Term and Life 
Disability). 

L9ng term 

inl3Uranp~q9ntr~cts 
with discretionary 
p9rticipating 
benefit~, 
(E11(low111ent and 
Whole of Life). 

Non-discretionary 
p~rticipating 
investment 
contra6ts. without 
guaranteed f'2turns. 

Guafijhteed:benefits paid. on 
death, ill .health ormaturity 
benefits are fixed and 
guaranteed and nofat the 
discretion of the insllrer. 

These p91icies include a 
defined initial 9,uarante~d sum 
assured which is ~ayable. on 
death. The guaranteed a.mount 
inc:reases thrqughout the 
duratipn of the policy by the 
addition.of regular.bonuses 
annually which, once added, 
are not removed. 

Th1:; grossvalue of premiums 
received is invested in units 
and the investment accounfis 
the.value of the units. 
Investment managemerit fees 
are deducted from 
policyholders a.m1~ally based 
on the average value offunds 
under management. 

•
2Nafureofr ~··· :· · · · .~.. ...• tllm~lvan~rares··:rzr · r !: 
comeensation for affecting tlie timing'~ 
claims and un'certainw; of : 

;future casfi flows l 
"' - , 2 , _ ~& """""' = "'"" ~""~ ~- 7J:1=;iZz,,,;;;;,: ~ 

· senefitst ~efine~ by ffle 
insurc:1n.ce contract, are 
not directlyaffected by 
the performance of 
underlying assets or the 
performance of the 
contracts as awhole. 

Ben13fits arising from the 
discretionary 
participation feature are 
based on the 
perforinance of specified 
pool of contracts or a 
specified type of 
contract. 

The investment return is 
calculated with 
reference to the 
earnings on. assets 
backingJhe investment 
contracts.less. any 
appli09ble management 
fees. 

Moiiality, morbidity; 
market interest rates, 
lapses and 
expenses. 

Mortality, morbidity; 
market earning 
intereshates, lapses 
and expenses. 

Market risk, interest 
rates and expenses. 

ASTERON LIFE LIMITED I FINANCIAL REPORT 2016/17 40 



Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

21.3 Credit risk 

The Company is exposed to and manages the following key sources of credit risk. 

rKey soi.lrcesrof creifif' - -
:ri~k 
JS «- " ~ 0C d 

Investments in financial 
instruments 

Reinsurance recoveries . . . 

re<;eivables 

tnyesf111ents fdfinancial insfniriientsiH the investment portfo!1psareheld in 
accordance with the investment maridafes. Credit limits have been 

establi;h$dwithinthese mandates.tQ ensure counterpartieshave 
appropriate credit ratings; A.framework is in place that sets and monitors 
investment strategies and arrangements. 

Credit risk yvith respect.to reinsurance programs is rninirni.sed by placement 
of cover with a number of rei11surers with strong credit. ratings. and in line 
with the Company's applicable .fisk appetite .statement. Eligible recoveries 
underreinsurancearrange.ments aremonitored and managed internally 
ahd by specialised reinsurance brokers operating in the international 
reinsurance market. 

The Company has no specific concentration of risk with a single counterparty arising from the use of 
financial instruments in managing its investment portfolios other than normally arise through dealings on 
recognised exchanges and off exchange dealings (over the counter contracts). The counterparties to over 
the counter contracts are limited to companies with strong credit ratings from a recognised credit rating 
agency. These counterparties are normally banks operating in New Zealand. 

For investment linked business, the liability to policyholders is linked to the performance and value of the 
assets that back those liabilities. The shareholder has no direct exposure to any credit risk in those 
assets. Unit linked assets totalling $12 million (2016: $3 million) are therefore not included in the two 
below sets of schedules. Policyholder loans are fully secured by the policy values on which the loans are 
made. As the shareholder has no direct exposure to any credit risk on the policyholder loans, these 
assets are excluded from the two below sets of schedules. 

There has been no material change in the credit risk faced by the Company or processes for managing 
the risk during the period. The Aggregate Risk Exposures Policy, prescribes processes and requirements 
to comply with APRA Prudential Standard 3PS221 Aggregate Risk Exposures. SNZ has reporting 
obligations to the Suncorp Group for breaches of limits prescribed in the Policy. Currently the limits apply 
to aggregate exposures to each of the Australian major banks. 
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Credit Rating 
Non-

investment Not 
AAA AA A BBB grade Rated Total 

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 
As at 30 June 2017 

Cash and cash equivalents 4,849 1,205 6,054 

Loans and receivables 10,862 1,695 12,557 

Related party receivables 72 146 218 

Other assets 2,468 2,468 

Reinsurance recoveries 
receivable 44,489 44,489 

Investment securities 1,568 242,706. 69,321 6,297 319,892 

Policy liabilities ceded under 
reinsurance 13,396 13,396 

Total 1,568 316,302 70,598 6,297 4,309 399,074 

As at 30 June 2016 

Cash and cash equivalents 2,116 330 1 2,447 

Loans and receivables 12,783 2,307 15,090 

Related party receivables 141 6 147 

Other assets 2,487 2,487 

Reinsurance recoveries 
receivable 44,802 44,802 

Investment securities 2,442 247,594 77,848 5,357 333,241 

Policy liabilities ceded under 
reinsurance 15,035 15,035 

Total 2,442 322,330 78,319 5,357 4,801 413,249 

All financial assets are neither past due nor impaired at balance date except for those disclosed in the 

following table. An amount is considered past due when a contractual payment falls overdue by one or 
more days. When an amount is classified as past due, the entire balance is disclosed in the past due 
analysis presented. 

As at 30 June 2017 

Loans and receivables 

As at 30 June 2016 

Loans and receivables 

Other loans receivables 

Neither 
past due 

nor 
impaired 

$'000 

5,020 

7,910 

Past due but not imeaired 

6-12 
0-3 mths 3-6 mths mths >12 mths Impaired Total 

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

6;187 869 306 175 12,557 

5,127 1,820 37 196 15,090 

The Company provides loans to agents in respect of business development. As at 30 June 2017 the total 
carrying value was $17,000 (2016: $33,000). No provisions have been recognised for impaired or past 
due but not impaired loans (2016: nil). 
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21.3 Credit risk (continued) 

Derivatives 

The Company uses derivatives for portfolio management purposes. They are used as an alternative 
where longer duration physical assets are not readily available, in order to achieve a desired level of total 
exposure as a means to hedge against market movements. Total exposure is the sum of the market 
value of the physical assets plus the equivalent physical asset value attributed to the derivatives. 

Deliberate gearing up or leverage exposure to an asset class is not permitted. 

The most commonly used derivatives by the Company are interest rate swaps and foreign currency 
forward contracts. 

Derivatives are valued on a market-to-market basis such that the statement of comprehensive income 
and the statement of financial position reflect all unrealised gains and losses on derivatives. 

The Company has a risk management statement which describes the controls used to manage the risks 
associated with the use of derivatives. Limits are set on the effective exposure implied by the use of 
derivatives and on transaction levels and aggregate counterparty exposure. The limits and criteria on 
which they are set are regularly reviewed, while all review, monitoring and control processes are 
independent of portfolio activity. 

21.4 Liquidity risk 

The Company is exposed to daily calls on its available cash resources from maturing policies and policy 
claims and surrenders. Liquidity risk is the risk that payment of obligations may not be met in a timely 
manner at a reasonable cost. The Directors agree limits on the minimum proportion of maturing funds 
available to meet such calls and on the minimum level of borrowing facilities that should be in place to 
cover maturities, claims and surrenders at unexpected levels of demand. Liquidity risk is also managed 
by placing limits on the percentage of liquid shareholder and participating investment assets. 

There has been no material change in the liquidity risk faced by the Company or the policies and 

processes for managing the risk during the period. 

The following table summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities based on the 
remaining undiscounted contractual obligations. It also includes the maturity profile for life insurance and 
life investment contract policy liabilities based on the discounted estimated timing of net cash outflows. 

This table shows the estimated timing of future net cash outflows resulting from insurance contract 
liabilities. This includes estimated future surrenders, death/disability claims and maturity benefits, offset 
by expected future premiums or contributions and reinsurance recoveries. All values are discounted to 
the current date using the assumed future investment earning rate for each product. 

For investment-linked business the liability to policyholders is linked to the performance and value of the 
assets that back those liabilities. The shareholder has no direct exposure to any risk in those assets. 
Therefore the table in this section shows the investment contract liability portion in policy liabilities 
separately without any maturity profile analysis. 

ASTERON LIFE LIMITED I FINANCIAL REPORT 2016/17 43 



Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

21.4 Liquidity risk (continued) 

1 year or 1 to 5 Over5 Investment 
less years years No term contracts Total 

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

As at 30 June 2017 

Payables and other liabilities 10,971 59 11,P30. 

Related party payables 3,780 3,780 

Employee entitlements 

Outstanding claims liabilities 40,570 37,239 61,433 3,571 142,813 

Polic:t liabilities {19,349} {59,305} (139,839) 25,492 210,806 17,805 
Total 35,972 {22,0661 · {78:406} 25,492 214;436 175,428 

As at 30 June 2016 

Payables and other liabilities 16,354 64 16,418 

Related party payables 2,085 2,085 

Employee entitlements 2,780 2,780 

Outstanding claims liabilities 41,179 35,304 60,510 136 137,129 

Policy liabilities {21,220} 155,768} {114,226} 23,474 221,272 53,532 

Total 41,178 (20,464) (53,716) 23,474 221,472 211,944 

21.5 Market risk 

The Company takes on exposure to market risks including currency risk, fair value and cash flow interest 

rate risk, and price risk. Market risks arise from open positions in interest rates, currency and equity 

products, all of which are exposed to general and specific market movements. The market risks that the 

Company primarily faces are equity risk and interest rate risk due to the nature of its investments and 
liabilities. 

For all the assets backing life insurance contracts that are sensitive to equity risk, the Company has 

developed investment guidelines to manage the Company's exposure to equity price risk primarily by 
setting benchmarks for asset mix. 

Investment activity for the Company is undertaken in accordance with investment mandates agreed by 

the Directors of the Company. The mandates stipulate the investment allocation mix, the match of 
investment assets and liabilities and the use of derivatives. 

The Company monitors the sensitivity of reported profit to market risk by assessing the expected change 
in the values of assets which would affect the profit as follows. 

For investment linked business, the liability to policyholders is linked to the performance and value of the 

assets that back those liabilities. The shareholder has no direct exposure to risk in those assets. The 

assets that back the unit linked liabilities are therefore not included in the tables shown below. 

There has been no material change in the market risk faced by the Company or the policies and 
processes for managing the risk during the period. 
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21.5 Market risk (continued) 

a) Interest rate risk 

The Company manages some of its exposure to interest rate risk by matching assets to the liabilities that 
they back. Separate asset/liability matching analyses are employed for separate categories of products 

within each business. Although this natural hedging is not reflected in the accounting policies adopted or 
in the presentation of the results and statement of financial position included in these financial 
statements, it does mitigate the Company's exposure to such risk. These matching procedures are not 
100% effective. The Company strikes a balance, seeking to mitigate the most significant exposure to 
interest rate risk while maximising the return to participating policyholders and shareholders by allowing 
some flexibility to those who manage the investment of the assets. A number of derivatives may be held 
to enable the matching of asset and liability to further mitigate exposure to interest rate movements. 

The substantial proportion of both interest bearing and non-interest bearing assets are investments held 
in respect of policy liabilities. The management of the risks associated with policy liabilities, including the 
interest rate risk, is subject to the requirements of the Reserve Bank of New Zealand Solvency Standard 
for Life Insurance Business. This includes satisfying solvency requirements, which in turn includes 
consideration of how assets and liabilities are matched. The Company enters into interest rate swap 
contracts for the purpose of extending the duration (weighted average time to maturity) of the fixed 
interest investments held to match the duration of the underlying policy liabilities that they back. 

A change in interest rate impacts the fair value of the Company's fixed rate and interest bearing assets 
and liabilities, and its interest rate swaps. Fair value changes impact on profit or loss or equity only where 
the instruments are carried at fair value. 

For investment linked business, the liability to policyholders is linked to the performance and value of the 
assets that back those liabilities. The shareholder has no direct exposure to risk in those assets. The 
assets that back the unit linked liabilities are therefore not included in the table below. 

Fair value sensitivity due to changes in interest rates (based on the assets held at balance date) on the 
Company's fixed rate assets and interest rate swaps is disclosed below. 

Details of the Company's solvency are disclosed in Note 17 .3. 

The following table shows the sensitivity to movements in the underlying interest rates of the interest 
bearing assets/(liabilities) to which the Company is exposed. The exposure of derivative financial 
instruments to interest rate risk is on the notional value of the derivative contracts as disclosed in the 
table below. 

(Note: the analysis of interest rate sensitivity for interest bearing investment assets has been analysed 
with respect to movements in yields rather than direct movements in market value). 

Profit (loss) Profit (loss) 
Change in after tax Change in after tax 

Exposure variable and equity Exposure variable and equity 

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

Fixed interest bearing 
220,290 

+1.0% (?,884) 
226,416 

+1.0% {6,729) 
investment securities -1.0% 6,266 -1.0% 7,179 

Interest rate swaps 131,000 
+1.0% (5,164) 

131,000 
+1.0% (6,065) 

-1;0% 5,164 -1.0% 6,065 

Total 351,290. 357,416 

Movements in market interest rates impact the price of the securities (and hence their fair value 
measurement) and so would impact both profit and equity. 
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21.5 Market risk (continued) 
b) Foreign exchange risk 

The Company is exposed to currency risk in that future movements in the New Zealand dollar against 

currencies of the countries in which foreign investments are held will affect the cash flows and the market 

values of these investments. 

The Company also invests in certain New Zealand Dollar denominated unit trusts that have underlying 

exposures to other foreign currencies. The Company has no direct exposure to foreign currency risk 

associated with these investments. 

The Company has undertaken forward exchange contracts to mitigate this currency risk in respect of 

some investments denominated in foreign currencies and the underlying foreign currency exposure on 

some of its investments in overseas unit trusts. The table below shows assets denominated in overseas 
currencies after allowing for the effect of forward foreign exchange contracts. 

The carrying amounts and profit or loss sensitivity to movements in the currencies of the Company's 

overseas financial assets are denominated in the following currencies. 

AUD 

c) Credit spread risk 

Exposure 
$'000 

421 

Profit (loss) 
Change in after tax 

variable and equity 
$'000 

+10% 
~10% 

(28) 
34 

Exposure 
$'000 

(108) 

Profit (loss) 
Change in aft:ertax 

variable and equity 
$'000 

+10% 
-10% 

7 
(9) 

The Company is exposed to credit spread risk through its investments in interest bearing securities. This 

risk is mitigated by incorporating a diversified investment portfolio, establishing maximum exposure limits 

for counterparties and minimum limits on credit ratings. 

The table below represents a sensitivity analysis on how credit spread movements could affect profit or 

loss for the exposure as at the balance date. There is no impact on equity reserves. 

Sensitivity of the Company's credit exposure to a +/- 100 basis points (2016: 100 basis points) change in 

yield is as follows: 

Profit (loss) Profit (loss) 
Change in after tax Change in after tax 

Exposure variable and equity Exposure variable and equity 

$'000 % $'000 $'000 % $'000 
Discounted securities, 

+1% (8,898} +1% (10,509) 
corporate bonds and 206,862 227,751 
derivatives -1% 8,898 -1% 10,509 

Government and local 
120,S,45 

+1% {2,519) 
118,514 

+1% (2,907) 
government securities ,-1% 2,519 -1% 2,907 

Total 327,407. 346,265 
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d) Equity price risks 

For all the assets backing life insurance contracts that are sensitive to equity risk, the Company has 
developed investment guidelines to manage the Company's exposure to equity price risk primarily by 
setting benchmarks for asset mix. 

The following table shows the sensitivity to movements in the value of the equity assets to which the 
Company is directly exposed. 

Profit (loss) Profit (loss) 
Change in after tax Change in after tax 

Exposure variable and equity Exposure variable and equity 
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

Domestic equities/unit trusts 14,786 
+5% 532 

14,045 
+5% 506 

-5% (~32) -5% (506) 

International equities/unit 
12,495 

+5% 450 
12,426 

+5% 447 
trusts ".'5% (450) -5% (447) 

Fixed interest/unit trusts 88,032 
+5% 3,169 

76,734 
+5% 2,762 

-5% {3,169} -5% {2,762l 
Total 115,313 103,205 

21.6 Capital management 

The Company's capital management policies and objectives together with details of the amount of equity 
retained for the purpose of financial soundness are described in Note 17. 

22. Commitments of expenditure 

Lease commitments 

Commitments for minimum lease payments in relation to non­
cancellable operating leases are payable as follows: 

Within one year 

Later than one year but not later than 5 years 

Later than 5 years 

Non cancellable operating leases 

$'000 

2,863 

7,196 

750 

10,809 

$'000 

3,203 

8,247 

2,558 

14,008 

The Company leases a number of commercial office premises and car parks throughout New Zealand 
with varying lease terms of up to 12 years from the date of inception with periodic rent reviews. It also has 
the legal right to sub-lease to a third party, one of its commercial office premises and respective car 
parks. 

23. Related parties 

23.1 Controlling entities 

The ultimate parent of the Company is Suncorp Group Limited. The parent of the Company is Suncorp 
Group New Zealand Limited. 
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23.2 Transactions and balances 

The following table shows transactions with related parties other than key management personnel. 

Service and administration fees received 

Parent 

Subsidiaries of ultimate parent 

Other 

Service and administration fees paid 

Parent 

Subsidiaries of ultimate parent 

Commissions paid 

Other 

Audit fees paid 

Other 

Non-audit fees paid 

Other 

Commissions received 

Subsidiaries of ultimate parent 

Management fees received 

Subsidiaries of ultimate parent 

Premiums received 

Parent 

Subsidiaries of ultimate parent 

Other 

Premiums paid 

Subsidiaries of ultimate parent 

Employer contributions paid to superannuation schemes 

Other 

Subsidiaries of ultimate parent 

Group tax loss offsets/tax transfers paid 

Subsidiaries of ultimate parent 

Transfer of employee entitlements 

Subsidiaries of ultimate parent 

Share-based payments 

Parent 

Dividends paid 

$'000 

17 

5,696 

767 

1,650 

25,674 

8;367 

72 

791 

1,060 

429 

4 

97 

148 

2,167 

(45) 

• • 
$'000 

332 

1,362 

907 

2,624 

6,302 

10,190 

64 

18 

776 

1,030 

4 

448 

5 

96 

123 

465 

2,689 

98 

During the year ended 30 June 2017, a related entity SNZEL was established to act as the employer for 
certain Suncorp New Zealand companies. As a result, the Company's employee entitlements were 
transferred to SNZEL. The Company is now recharged for employee related costs instead of incurring 
them directly as in prior periods. These amounts are included in the "Service and administration fees 
paid" category above. 

The "Other" entity category presented in the table above and the following table includes managed 
superannuation schemes together with AA Life Services Limited which is a joint venture company owned 
50% by the Company's parent Suncorp Group New Zealand Limited. 
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23.2 Transactions and balances (continued) 

Aggregate amounts receivable from or payable to related parties as at 30 June 2017 and 30 June 2016 
are shown in the table below: 

$'000 $'000 

Amounts receivable from 

Other . 218 147 

Total amounts receivable from related earties 218 147 

Amounts payable to 

Parent 175 245 

Subsidiaries of ultimate parent 3,491 1,679 

Other 114 161 

Total amounts ea:table to related earties 3,780 2,085 

All balances are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand in the local currency. 

23.3 Key management personnel 

The Key Management Personnel (KMP) compensation is provided by the Company or by a related party 
of the ultimate parent entity. Remuneration provided other than by a Suncorp Group entity located in 
New Zealand is not included in this disclosure. This applies to M A Cameron for the year ended 30 June 
2017 and to GT Ricketts for the year ended 30 June 2016 who were remunerated by a related party of 
the ultimate parent. The KMP compensation is as follows: 

$'000 $'000 

Short-term employee benefits 5,136 3,208 

Post employment benefits 166 117 

Long-term benefits .191 

Share based ea~ment 1,108 98 

Total compensation 6,601 3,423 

Compensation of KMP has been determined in accordance with their roles within Suncorp Group (which 
includes the Company, Vero Insurance New Zealand Limited and Vero Liability Insurance Limited). In 
some cases employee service contracts do not include any compensation, including bonuses, specifically 
related to the role of KMP of the Company and to allocate a figure may be misleading. In some cases 
there is no link between KMP compensation and performance of the Company. Therefore, in such cases 
as there is no reasonable basis for allocating a KMP compensation amount to the Company, the entire 
compensation of the KMP has been disclosed above. 
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24. Auditor's remuneration 

During the year, the auditor of the Company was paid for the following services: 

Audit fees - current year 

Audit of annual accounts of the Company 

Audit of annual accounts of managed funds* 

Audit fees - prior years 

Audit of annual accounts of the Company 

Audit of annual accounts of managed funds* 

Non-audit fees current year 

Section 13(2)(c) reporting* 

Solvency return 

AMUCFT forensic services 

$'000 

435 

72 

28 

40 

30 
Total auditor's remuneration 605 

* Audit fees are paid by the Company on behalf of related party managed funds and superannuation 
schemes. 

25. Contingent liabilities 

$'000 

435 

59 

8 

5 

18 

40 

565 

Under the terms of its contracts with advisers, the Company has agreed that it would acquire the 
entitlement of individual retiring advisers to future income streams from renewal commission, should the 
advisers themselves be unable to find an approved buyer within 6 months of the date that the agreement 
ends. The liability for future renewal commission is contained in the Company's policy liabilities, and 

therefore these potential transactions do not result in any change to the Company's net assets or profit 
and loss. In practice these transactions are not frequent and management do not consider that the 
consequent acceleration of the timing of underlying cash flows is material. 
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26. Statutory funds 

The Company has established a statutory fund as required under IPSA. The effective date of establishing 
the statutory fund was 1 July 2012. 

The shareholder's access to the retained profits and shareholder's capital in the statutory fund is 
restricted by the IPSA. The shareholder's entitlement to monies held in the statutory fund is subject to the 
distribution and transfer restrictions of the IPSA. 

Non Total 
Participating Participating Statutory Shareholder 

business business Fund Fund Total 

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

As at 30 June 2017 

Shareholder retained profits 

Shareholder opening retained profits 4,290 166,581 170,871 5,051 175,922 

Operating profit 503 37,336 37,839 269 38,108 

Transfer of profits between funds 244 (21,244) (21,000) 21,000 

Movament in employee defined benefit 
funds deficit (564) (564) 

Dividends paid - (21,000} {21,000) 

Shareholder closinl;I retained erofits 5,037 182,673 187,710 41756 192,466 

Share capital and transfers 

Share caeital 2351104 2351104 2351104 

Total shareholder egui~ 235,104 235,104 235,104 

Components of shareholder interest 
in statutory funds 

Shareholder retained profits 5,037 182,673 187,710 4,756 192,466 

Share caeital 2351104 235;104 2351104 

Shareholder funds 5,037 417,777 422,814 4,756 427,570 

As at 30 June 2016 

Shareholder retained profits 

Shareholder opening retained profits 4,379 131,116 135,495 5,283 140,778 

Operating profit 212 50,006 50,218 254 50,472 

Transfer of profits between funds (301) (14,541) (14,842) 14,842 

Movement in employee defined benefit 
funds deficit (578) (578) 

Di\oidends eaid (14,750} (14,750) 

Shareholder closing retained profits 4,290 166,581 170,.871 5,051 175,922 

Share capital and transfers 

Share capital 235,149 235,149 235,149 

Total shareholder egui~ 235,149 235,149 235,149 

Components of shareholder interest 
in statutory funds 

Shareholder retained profits 4,290 166,581 170,871 5,051 175,922 

Share caeital 235,149 235,149 235,149 

Shareholder funds 4,290 401,730 406,020 5,051 411,071 

Refer to Note 4 for the allocation of profit to the policyholders. 
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Shareholder 
Statutory Fund Fund Total 

$'000 $'000 $'000 

As at 30 June 2017 
Investment assets 576,440 7,545 583,9~5 
Other assets 2,i44 2,744 
Life insurance contract liabilities (218,493) (218,4~3) 
Life investment contract liabilities 210,806 210,806 
Other liabilities 269,857 4,101 273;958 
Retained profits directly attributable to shareholders 187,709 4,757 192,466 

For the financial year ended 30 June 2017 

Premium revenue 225,607 225,607 

Investment revenue 27;796 233 28;Q29 
Claims expense 104,439 104,439 
Other operating expenses 80,690 80,~90 
Investment revenues paid or allocated to policyholders 22,374 - 22,;374 
Profit before tax 55,707 296 56,003 
Profit after tax 37,839 269 38, 10? 
Distributions from funds (21,000) !21;000} 

As at 30 June 2016 
Investment assets 615,396 7,406 622,802 

Other assets 2,490 2,490 

Life insurance contract liabilities (191,214) (191,214) 

Life imestment contract liabilities 221,272 221,272 

Other liabilities 261,901 4,338 266,239 

Retained profits directly attributable to shareholders 170,870 5,052 175,922 

For the financial year ended 30 June 2016 

Premium revenue 213,929 213,929 

Investment revenue 49,737 256 49,993 

Claims expense 134,275 134,275 

Other operating expenses 64,230 64,230 

Investment revenues paid or allocated to policyholders 36,548 36,548 

Profit before tax 70,812 416 71,228 

Profit after tax 50,218 254 50,472 

Distributions from funds (14,842) (14,842) 

28. Significant accounting policies 

The Company's significant accounting policies set out below have been consistently applied to all periods 
presented in these financial statements. 

28.1 Principles of life insurance business 

Under IPSA and related regulations, the Company has established separate statutory and shareholder 
funds. The shareholder's entitlement to monies held in the statutory fund is subject to the distribution and 
transfer restrictions of IPSA. 

The Company's significant activity is the selling and administration of life insurance and life investment 
contracts. The business is comprised of life and disability insurance and investments. In relation to the 
Company's life insurance business, which is conducted by the Company, assets, liabilities, revenues and 
expenses are recognised in the financial statements irrespective of whether they relate to policyholders or 
the shareholder. A policyholder is one who holds a policy of insurance with the Company. 
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a) Life insurance contracts 
Life insurance contracts involve the acceptance of significant insurance risk. Insurance risk is defined as 
significant if and only if, an insured event could cause an insurer to pay significant additional benefits in 
any scenario, excluding scenarios that lack commercial substance (i.e. have no discernible effect on the 
economics of the transaction). Insurance contracts include those where the insured benefit is payable on 
the occurrence of a specified event such as death, injury or disability caused by accident or illness. The 
insured benefit is either not linked or only partly linked to the market value of the investments held by the 
entity, and the financial risks are substantially borne by the entity. 

The insurance operations of the Company are conducted within separate funds and are reported in 
aggregate in the profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive income, statement of financial position 
and statement of cash flows of the Company. 

b) Life investment contracts 
Life investment contracts are all contracts that do not involve the acceptance of significant insurance risk. 
They include investment-linked contracts where the benefit amount is directly linked to the market value 
of the investment held in the particular investment-linked fund. While the underlying assets are registered 
in the name of the entity and the investment-linked policy owner has no direct access to the specific 
assets, the contractual arrangements are such that the investment-linked policyholder bears the risks and 
rewards of the fund's investment performance. The Company derives fee income from the administration 
of investment-linked policies and funds. 

Policy contracts that include both investment and insurance elements are separated into these two 
elements when practicable and when components can be reliably measured, and reported accordingly. 

28.2 Foreign currency 

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are initially translated to New Zealand dollars at the spot 
exchange rates ruling at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities at 
the end of the reporting period are translated to New Zealand dollars at the spot rates of exchange 
current on that date. The resulting differences on monetary items are recognised in the profit and loss as 
exchange gains and losses in the financial year in which the exchange rates change. Foreign currency 
non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost are translated using the 
exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency non-monetary assets and liabilities that are 
stated at fair value are translated to New Zealand dollars at foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the 
fair value was determined. 

28.3 Revenue and expense recognition 
a) Premium revenue 
Premium recorded as revenue relates to risk bearing life insurance contracts. The components of 
premium that relate to life investment contracts are in the nature of deposits and are recognised as a 
movement in policy liabilities. 

Life insurance premiums with no due date are recognised as revenue on a cash received basis. 
Premiums with a regular due date are recognised on an accruals basis. 

b) Claims expense 
Insurance claims are recognised when the liability to the policyholder under the policy contract has been 
established or upon notification of the insured event, depending on the type of claim. 

The component ofa life insurance contract claim that relates to the bearing of risks is treated as a claim 
expense. Other life insurance claim amounts and all life investment contract amounts paid to 
policyholders are in the nature of withdrawals and are recognised as a decrease in policy liabilities. 

c) Outwards reinsurance expense 
Premium ceded to reinsurers is recognised as outwards reinsurance premium expense in profit or loss 
from the attachment date over the period of indemnity of the reinsurance contract in accordance with the 
expected pattern of the pattern of gross premium received. 

d) Life insurance reinsurance recoveries income 
Policy claims recoverable from reinsurers are recognised as revenue in line with the recognition of the 
claim expense. 

ASTERON LIFE LIMITED I FINANCIAL REPORT 2016/17 53 



Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

e) Investment revenue and expense 
Interest income and expense are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method. 

Dividends and distribution income are recognised when the right to receive income is established net of 
any imputation credits. 

f) Fee income and other revenue 
Fees and other income is recognised as services are provided. 

g) Basis of expense apportionment for the Company's life insurance business 
The Company's life insurance business expenses comprise either direct i.e. where they are directly 
attributable to life insurance and life investment products; or indirect i.e. all other expenses relating to the 
acquisition, maintenance and investment management activities associated with life insurance and life 
investment contracts, which are recorded in cost centres and have been incurred in relation to more than 
one business activity. 

Life business expenses are classified as follows: 

Acquisition expenses 
The fixed and variable costs of acquiring new business, including commissions and similar distribution 
costs and costs of accepting, issuing and initially recording policies. 

Investment management expenses 
The costs involved with buying and selling investments and the ongoing management costs of an 
investment portfolio. 

Maintenance expenses 

All other costs are considered to be maintenance costs incurred to administer existing life insurance and 
life investment contracts. 
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28.4 Income tax 

Income tax payable on profits, based on the applicable tax law, is recognised as an expense in the period 
in which profits arise. 

From 1 July 2010, life insurers have been subject to a new tax regime. Two tax bases are maintained; the 
shareholder base where tax is payable on premiums plus investment income from shareholder funds, 
less claims, expenses and change in reserves; and the policyholder base where tax is payable on net 
investment income from policyholder funds. The life insurer pays tax on both bases at the prevailing 
company rate of 28% (2016: 28%). As the life insurer is taxed as proxy for the policyholder, returns to 
policyholders are tax exempt. 

Income and deductions are recognised using ordinary tax principles, with the addition of special rules to 
deal with the unique timing and allocation issues inherent with life insurance products. 

Transitional provisions are included in the new regime for life risk business in force at 30 June 2010 which 
allow these policies to continue to be taxed similar to that incurred under the previous rules. The 
transitional provisions apply to stepped premium term policies in force at 1 July 2010 for a period of 5 
years, and for level premium term policies in force at 1 July 2010 for the remainder of the duration of the 
policy. For stepped premium term policies, the transitional provisions expired on 30 June 2015. 

The new rules also extend the benefits of the Portfolio Investment Entity (PIE) rules to people who save 
through life products. 

Deferred income tax is provided in full and is recognised on temporary differences arising between the tax 
basis of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. The principal 
temporary differences arise from revaluation of certain financial assets and liabilities, including derivative 
contracts, provision for employee entitlements, deferred acquisition costs and tax losses carried forward. 
The rates enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date are used to determine deferred income 
tax. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially 
enacted by the reporting date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is 
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised where it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against 
which the temporary differences can be utilised. 

The tax effect of income tax losses available for carry forward are recognised as an asset when it is 
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which these losses can be utilised. 

Where an item, which gives rise to a temporary difference, is recognised in or against equity, the deferred 
tax is also recognised in or against equity. 

a) Goods and services tax (GST) 
Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the recoverable amount of GST. Receivables and 
payables are stated inclusive of GST where applicable. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or 
payable to, the tax authority is included as part of receivables and payables. The items in the cash flow 
statements are shown exclusive of the recoverable amount of GST. 

28.5 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, other short-term highly liquid investments with original 
maturities of three months or less from the acquisition date, deposits at call which are readily convertible 
to cash on hand and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, net of outstanding bank 
overdrafts. 

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consists of cash and cash 
equivalents as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within 
liabilities in the statement of financial position unless there exists a right of offset. 
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28.6 Non-derivative financial assets 
a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are classified as either held for trading or are 
designated as such upon initial recognition. Financial assets are designated at fair value through profrt: or 

loss if the Company manages such investments and makes purchase and sale decisions based on their 
fair value in accordance with the Company's documented risk management or investment strategy. 

They are initially recognised on the trade date at fair value. Transaction costs are recognised in the profit 

or loss as incurred. Subsequently, the assets are measured at fair value on each reporting date based on 
the quoted market price where available. Where a quoted price is not available one of the following 

valuation techniques are used to value the assets at reporting date: recent arm's length transactions, 
discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models or other valuation techniques commonly used by 

market participants. 

Fair value for the various types of financial assets is determined as follows: 

"' Listed unit trusts and shares - by reference to the quoted market price. 

• Listed government and semi government securities - by reference to the quoted market price. 

• Unlisted investments - at valuation based on recent arm's length transactions, reference to other 
instruments that have substantially the same characteristics, discounted cash flow analysis and 

other pricing models. The assumptions and valuations inputs in applying these market standard 
valuation methodologies are determined using observable market inputs, which include, but are not 
limited to, benchmark yields, reported trades of similar or identical instruments, broker-dealer 

quotes and reference data including market research. 

Movements in fair value are taken immediately to the profit or loss. 

b) Loans and other receivables 
Loans and other receivables which include policyholder and other loan receivables are financial assets 

with fixed and determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. They are initially 

recognised on the date they are originated. They are initially measured at fair value plus any directly 
attributable transaction costs and subsequently measured at amortised cost less any accumulated 

impairment losses. 

A provision for impairment of trade and other receivable is established when there is objective evidence 

that the Company will not be able to collect all amounts receivable according to the original terms of the 

receivables. The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the 
present value of estimated future cash flows. Expected future receivables are discounted using interest 
rates on government guaranteed securities with terms to maturity that match, as closely as possible, the 

estimated future cash inflows. 

c) Derecognition of financial assets 
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive future cash flows from the assets have 

expired, or have been transferred, and the Company has transferred substantially all risk and rewards of 
ownership. 

28.7 Derivative financial instruments 

The Company holds derivative financial instruments to hedge the Company's assets and liabilities or as 

part of the Company's investment activities. Derivatives include exchange rate and interest rate related 

contracts and fixed interest options. 

All derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on trade date. Transaction costs are recognised in 

profit or loss as incurred. Fair values are determined from quoted market prices where available; where 

quoted market prices are not available, discounted cash flow models, broker and dealer price quotations 
or option pricing models are used as appropriate. The fair value of derivative financial instruments also 

includes credit valuation adjustments to reflect credit risk for both the derivative counterparty and the 
Company. Derivatives are classified and accounted for as held for trading financial assets at fair value 

through profit or loss unless they qualify as a hedging instrument in an effective hedge relationship under 

hedge accounting. The Company has not adopted hedge accounting. 
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28.8 Assets backing life insurance and investment liabilities 

The assets of the life business are assessed under NZ IFRS4 Insurance Contracts to be assets that are 
held to back life insurance and life investment contracts. 

Financial assets backing life insurance and life investment contract liabilities 
The Company has designated investment securities within the total statutory fund (participating and non­
participating business), which are at fair value through profit or loss, as backing policy liabilities. 

Financial assets not backing life insurance and life investment contract liabilities 
Financial assets held within shareholder funds do not back life insurance contract liabilities or life 
investment contract liabilities. These comprise investment securities which have been designated at fair 
value through profit or loss as they are managed and their performance is evaluated on a fair value basis 

for internal and external reporting in accordance with the investment strategy. 

28.9 Financial liabilities 

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable 

to the issue of the financial liability, except for financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss which 
exclude transaction costs. A financial liability is derecognised when it is extinguished, that is, when the 
obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. 

Financial liabilities are classified into one of the following categories upon initial recognition. At each 
reporting date measurement depends upon the chosen classification. 

a) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

A financial liability at fair value through profit or loss is a financial liability that meets either of the following 
conditions: 

" it is classified as held for trading; or 

" upon initial recognition it is designated by the Company as fair value through profit or loss. 

Financial liabilities arising from life investment contracts are measured at fair value based on future 

settlement amounts under the contract. Changes to the fair value are recognised in the profit or loss in 
the period in which they occur. 

b) Financial liabilities at amortised cost 

Financial liabilities, other than financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

28.10 Lease transactions 

A distinction is made between finance leases which effectively transfer from the lessor to the lessee 
substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of leased assets, and operating leases 
under which the lessor effectively retains substantially all such risks and benefits. 

Operating lease payments are charged to the profit or loss in the periods in which they are incurred, as 
this represents the pattern of benefits derived from the leased assets, except where an alternative basis 
is more representa!ive of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased property. When an 
operating lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, any payment required to be made to 
the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as an expense in the period in which termination takes place. 
The Company does not have any finance leases. 
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28.11 Impairment 

Assets of the Company are assessed for indicators of impairment at each reporting date. Indicators 
include both internal and external factors. If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is 

estimated. 

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its 
recoverable amount. Any resultant write-down is recognised as an expense in the reporting period in 
which it occurs, unless the asset had previously been re-valued, in which case the previous revaluation is 
written back with any excess being expensed. 

a) Calculation of recoverable amount for other assets 

The recoverable amount of the Company's loans and receivables carried at amortised cost is calculated 
as the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate 
computed at initial recognition of these financial assets. Receivables with a short duration are not 
discounted. The recoverable amount of other assets is the greater of their fair value less costs to sell and 
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present 
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money 
and the risks specific to the asset. 

The unwinding of the discount from initial recognition of impairment through to recovery of the written 
down amount is recognised through interest income. 

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are 
separately identifiable operational cash flows (cash generating units). 

b) Reversal of impairment 

An impairment loss for an asset is reversed in following periods if there are indications that the 
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or has decreased. The impairment loss is 
reversed, in the profit or loss, only to the extent that it increases the asset back to its original carrying 
amount before any impairment was recorded. 

28.12 Employee entitlements 

The Company contributes to defined benefit superannuation funds as required. Contributions are charged 
to the profit and loss as the obligation to pay is incurred. Contributions outstanding at reporting date are 
treated as liabilities and prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund 
or a reduction in the future payments are available. 

The defined benefit funds provide defined pension annuities and lump sum benefits based on years of 

service and final average salary. 

The Company's net obligation in respect of defined benefit funds is calculated separately for each fund by 
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods, 
discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any fund assets. 

The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by independent actuaries using the 
projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Company, the 
recognised asset is limited to the present value of the economic benefits available in the form of any 
future refunds from the fund or reductions in the future contributions to the fund. To calculate the present 
value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any applicable minimum funding requirements. 

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return 
on fund assets ( excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are 
recognised immediately in other comprehensive income. The Company determines the net interest 
expense to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then net 
defined benefit liability/(asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability/(asset) 
during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other 
expenses related to the defined benefit funds are recognised in profit and loss. 
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When the benefits of a fund are changed or when a fund is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that 
relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the 
period in which they arise. 

28.13 Provisions 

A provision is a liability of uncertain timing or amount which is recognised in the statement of financial 
position when: 

• the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event; 

• it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; and 

• the amount can be reliably estimated. 

If the effect is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre­
tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, when appropriate, the 

risks specific to the liability. 

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Where 
the Company enters into financial arrangements to provide financial support, the Company considers 
these to be insurance arrangements or financial guarantees, as applicable. The Company treats the 
insurance arrangements as contingent liabilities until such time as it becomes probable that the Company 
will incur losses under the insurance arrangements. Financial guarantees are recognised at fair values, 
determined using cash flow forecasts to determine whether losses related to the financial guarantees 
have been incurred. 

28.14 Deferred acquisition expenses 

Deferred acquisition costs for life insurance contracts represent the fixed and variable costs of acquiring 
new business and include commissions, certain advertising and underwriting costs. These costs are 
implicitly deferred through Margin on Service (MoS) accounting and recognised in the statement of 

financial position as a reduction in life insurance contract liabilities. The amount deferred is subject to an 
overall limit such that the value of future profits at inception cannot be negative. 

All other acquisition costs are expensed as incurred. 

28.15 Policy liabilities 
a) Determination of policy liabilities 

Liabilities to policyholders in the statement of financial position are measured on the MoS basis in 
accordance with PS20. The movement in policy liabilities in the profit or loss is also calculated on a MoS 
basis. 

b) Life insurance policy liabilities 

Policy liabilities, arising from life insurance contracts, are measured at the net present value of estimated 
future cash flows in accordance with PS20. Policy liabilities are re-measured periodically and changes are 
recognised in profit or loss in a manner that allows for the systematic release of planned margins over a 
period that reflects the services provided, and premiums received from, the policyholders. 

Expected future cash flows are reviewed to establish the present value of estimated future expenses for 
the Company of related products against the present value of estimated future revenues to test the 
adequacy of the policy liabilities. 

Profit allocated to participating policyholders is recognised as an increase in policy liabilities. Both the 
element of this profit that has not yet been allocated to specific policyholders (i.e. unvested) and that 
which has been allocated to specific policyholders by way of bonus distributions (i.e. vested) are included 
within life insurance contract liabilities. 

The significant assumptions applied in calculating these estimates and the process and methodology 
used for determining these assumptions are included in Note 15.3. 

c) Life investment policy liabilities 

Policy liabilities, arising from life investment contracts, are recognis.ed at fair value through profit or, w~ich 
is based on the valuation of the linked assets, subject to a minimum of current surrender value. 
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28.16 Contributed capital 
a) Ordinary shares 

Ordinary shares are recognised as equity. 

b) Preference shares 

The preference shares do not exhibit the characteristics of debt in their terms of issue, repayment, or 
dividend payment and are therefore classified as equity. 

c) Dividends 

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, determined or publicly recommended by the 
Directors on or before the end of the financial year but not distributed at reporting date. 

Where a dividend is declared post reporting date but prior to the date of the issue of the financial reports, 
disclosure of the declaration is made in the financial statements but no provision is made. 

28.17 Contingent liabilities and assets 

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the statement of financial position, but are disclosed in the 
financial statements unless the possibility of settlement is remote, in which case no disclosure is made. If 
settlement becomes probable and the amount can be reliably estimated, a provision is recognised. 

Contingent assets are not recognised in the statement of financial position, but are disclosed in the 
financial statements when inflows are probable. If inflows become virtually certain, an asset is recognised. 

The amount disclosed as a contingent liability or contingent asset is the best estimate of the settlement or 
inflow. 

28.18 Changes in accounting estimates and errors 
a) Estimates 

If a change in an accounting estimate gives rise to a change in an asset or liability, or relates to equity, it 
is recognised by adjusting the carrying amount of the related asset, liability or equity item in the period of 
the change. Otherwise, it is recognised prospectively by including it in the profit and loss in the period of 
the change and future periods, as applicable. 

b) Errors 

Material prior period errors are corrected retrospectively (to the earliest date practicable) in the next 
issued financial statements by: 

• restating the comparative amounts for the prior period(s) presented in which the error occurred; or 

.. if the error occurred before the earliest prior period presented, restating the opening balances of 
assets, liability and equity for the earliest prior period presented. 

For retrospective application comparative information presented for a particular prior period need not be 
restated if restating the information is impracticable. When comparative information for a particular prior 
period is not restated, the opening balance of retained earnings for the next period is restated for the 
cumulative effect of the error before the beginning of that period. 
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c) New accounting standards and interpretations not yet adopted 

NZ IFRS 9 Financial Instruments was issued and introduces changes in the classification and 
measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities, impairment of financial assets and new rules for 
hedge accounting. This standard becomes mandatory for the Company's 30 June 2019 financial 
statements. The potential effects on adoption of the standard are currently being assessed. 

NZ IFRS 15 Revenue From Contracts With Customers establishes a comprehensive framework for 
determining whether, how much and when revenue is recognised. It replaces existing revenue recognition 
guidance, including among others NZ IAS 18 Revenue and IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes. 
This standard will become mandatory for the Company's 30 June 2020 financial statements. The potential 
effects on adoption of the standard are currently being assessed. 

NZ IFRS 16 Leases was issued and introduces changes to lessee accounting. It requires recognition of 
lease liabilities and assets other than short-term leases or leases of low-value assets on the statement of 
financial position. This will replace the operating/finance lease distinction and accounting requirements 
prescribed in IAS 17 Leases. This standard will become mandatory for the Company's 30 June 2020 
financial statements. The potential effects on adoption of the standard are currently being assessed. 

NZ IFRS 9, NZ IFRS 15 and NZ IFRS 16 are available for early adoption but have not been applied by 
the Company in this financial report. 

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts was issued by the International Accounting Standards Board in May 2017. 
An NZ IFRS version is expected to be issued in due course. The standard will replace the existing IFRS 4 
and establishes the principles for recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance 
contracts. This standard becomes mandatory for the Company's 30 June 2022 financial statements. The 
potential effects on adoption of the standard are currently being assessed. 

29. Subsequent events 

On 31 July 2017 the Directors resolved to pay ordinary dividends of $25,000,000 being 15.4 cents per 
share. 

There were no material events post 30 June 2017 which would require adjustment to the amounts 
reflected in the 30 June 2017 financial statements or disclosures thereto. 
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Asteron 
Life SUNCORP 

Appointed Actuary - Report Required under Section 78 of the 

Insurance (Prudential Supervision) Act 2010 

To the Board of Directors of Asteron Life Limited {New Zealand) 

Background 

This report has been prepared by Kate Dron FIA FNZSA, Appointed Actuary of Asteron Life Limited 
{New Zealand) {" ALLNZ") under section 78 of the Insurance (Prudential Supervision) Act 2010 {the 
Act). 

The purpose of this report is to provide information to the Board and management regarding the 
review I have undertaken in relation to the actuarial information (as described in section 77 of the 
Act) in, or used in the preparation of, ALLNZ's financial statements. 

This report has not been prepared with any additional purposes in mind and the results and opinions 
contained within may not be applicable or appropriate for other purposes. 

Directors' responsibility for the financial statements 

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of ALLNZ's financial statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand and International Financial Reporting 
Standards that give a true and fair view of the matters to which they relate, and for such internal 
control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of ALLNZ's financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or errors. 

Appointed Actuary's responsibility 

My responsibility is to review the actuarial information in, or used in the preparation of, ALLNZ's 
financial statements. The financial statements comprise the statements of financial position as at 30 
June 2017, the statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year 
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

My review involves: 

• Ascertaining the completeness of the actuarial information; 

• Evaluating the accuracy and appropriateness of the actuarial information; and 

• Providing an opinion of whether the solvency margins for ALLNZ and its life funds {including 
statutory fund{s)) are maintained at the balance date. 

I am an employee of Suncorp NZ Employees Limited, a related entity of ALLNZ. Part of my 
remuneration is dependent on the results of the Suncorp Group, of which ALLNZ cont ributes 
towards. 
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Opinion 

Asteron 
Life SUNCORP 

Section 78 of the Act specifies those matters that must be addressed, namely; 

• I have obtained all information that is relevant to the preparation of the financial statements; 
and 

• In my opinion and from an actuarial perspective: 

• the actuarial information contained in ALLNZ's financial statements has been appropriately 
included; 

• the actuarial information contained in ALLNZ's financial statements has been used 
appropriately; 

• ALLNZ maintains a solvency margin in accordance with the Solvency Standard for Life 
Insurance Business 2014 for the purposes of section 21(2)(b) of the Act as at 30 June 2017; 
and 

• ALLNZ maintains, in respect of its Asteron Life Statutory Fund 1 and Life Fund a solvency 
margin in accordance with the Solvency Standard for Life Insurance Business 2014 for the 
purposes of section 21(2)(c) of the Act as at 30 June 2017. 

Kate Dron 

Appointed Actuary 

21 July 2017 
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